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REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

19th Floor

North Point Industrial Building

499 King's Road

North Point Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited
Bank of Communications

WEBSITE

www.datronixhldgs.com.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX

REVENUE / GROSS PROFIT ##%E K& E
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FINANCIAL HlGHLIGHTS AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX

NET ASSETS BE&EE
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GENERAL

The Group is principally engaged in the design,
manufacture and sale of magnetics used in consumer
electronics, data processing appliances and other
electronics systems for coupling, isolation, filtering,
interfacing and timing control applications. All of the
Group’s magnetics are sold under its own brand name
“Datatronics”. A majority of the Group’s products are
customized magnetics tailored-made according to the
requirements and specifications of its customers. The
Group also offered standard catalogue magnetics to its
customers.

The Group focuses on the high-end segment of the
magnetics industry. It has a customer base over 300
customers comprising manufacturers of telecommunication
and data processing equipment, technology equipment,
motor vehicles and medical equipment.

The Group’s world-class design and manufacturing
capabilities, together with the breadth of its product
offerings, provide her with a competitive advantage that
enable her to anticipate and deliver highly customized
solutions for their customers’ product needs. In addition,
their global presence enables them to participate in many
relevant product and geographic markets and provide her
with proximity to their global customer base.

FAEE2FTEERK ARG HERHEE
BANRETHEER BBEEESRKHE
tEFRG2HMETHE  UEBE B
BoAE AELKBEZEHERER K
SEFEHMTHERYUAELRGRE
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Wt T o
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B SAKEEARSRRERHIEEF
FERZEMBRER - FEEHZZ
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EFEEM-
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GENERAL

THE GROUP’S PRODUCT LINE

The Company designs and manufactures both standard and
customized magnetic components in a large variety of products:

e  Transformers

o Lan Filter Modules

o Digital Delay Modules

o Inductors/Chokes

e ASDL Transformer

o Planar Magnetics

o Magnetics for Aviation Applications

U Magnetic Components for DC/DC Converters

o Magnetics for Hybrid Network Assemblies

o Magnetics for Power Conversion
o Magnetics for Energy Savings
o Magnetics for Medical Devices/Equipment

o Magnetics for Internet Equipment
o Magnetics for Data Acquisition/Transmitter and Signal
Conditioning

MARKETS SERVED

The Company's products to-day find application in a wide range of
state-of-the-art electronic equipment that include the following:

o Telecommunications

o Communications

° Instrumentation

° Industrial Equipment

o Computers & Networking
o Internet Equipment

o Medical Devices/Equipment
o Automotive

The Group’s products meet or exceed numerous
performance, safety, quality specification and standard
that include the following:

o 1516949
o IEC950
N UL/CSA
o 1SO9001
o VDE

EREERR
AARARIREEARTAERZEER
B T4

o Transformers

o Lan Filter Modules

o Digital Delay Modules

o Inductors/Chokes

o ASDL Transformer

o Planar Magnetics

o Magnetics for Aviation Applications

° Magnetic Components for DC/DC
Converters

o Magnetics for Hybrid Network
Assemblies

o Magnetics for Power Conversion

o Magnetics for Energy Savings

o Magnetics for Medical Devices/
Equipment

o Magnetics for Internet Equipment

o Magnetics for Data Acquisition/
Transmitter and Signal Conditioning
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GENERAL

MARKETS SERVED - CONTINUED

The directors consider the followings to be the key factors
contributing to the Group's success:

P BR 35 T 4% — ¥
EERH THEERNEEBURY Z
FERE:

the extensive experience and expertise of the Group's
management team in the magnetics industry;

its well-established business relationship with
customers;

its forefront technology and technical know-how to
assist and bridge its customers to new technologies;

its ability to satisfy customers’ needs by offering
customized products that meet their reliability, quality

and delivery requirements;

its logistic center located in Southern California, U.S.
to support delivery and service to customers;

the wide range of product it offers;

“Just-in-time” delivery and “Ship-to-stock” Program
certified with numerous key customers;

its reputation for high quality and high reliability
products;

“One stop solution”;

capacity to grow due to more demands for high
reliability products in U.S. and Europe;

cost competitive;

the barrier of entrance for competitors is very high;
and

its established relationship with major suppliers
which enables the Group to obtain a stable supply of

e AFEBEEEBRMREMETHITEZ
LELRKREENE

s XAEEHEEFEVZRBEXBER.

o AEEZRimRHR KB A B R 5
AHEFBEHRMNEL

e AFEBRFEFRERMHHEHHTERE @
BRNEERZEFIRTEMZED

o AEEREERMMNZIRB D
AREFENERREHRS

s AEERMZEZRIEMR

o HFZFEEFFHF 2[ust-in-time]
R A4 R [ Ship-to-stock 15t &l ;

o AFEEREBERSUEEEMZEBE;

o [—uWHERIRL;

o BRAXEENZBEHUBRSEZBERBOM
HeEEEmZEREMN;

o  EBfERANME
e BMEFHFMAZEEEBS R

s FAEBHEIBHEEEZYZBERF  RE
HEAEERAREZERNSRE

materials for the Group’s products. ZRBELEE -
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OVERVIEW

Global economic activity experienced a wider than
expected slowdown alongside with record high inflation
observed. Datronix’s sales and operation income were
directly impacted due to the economic slowdown and
increase of various cost factors. Datronix reported its
revenue for 2022 at HK$262.4 million, while 2021 was
at HK$243.6 million, an increase of 7.7%. Gross margin
decreased to HK$80.7 million for 2022, compared to
HK$85.4 million for the corresponding period a year ago.
Gross margin, as a percentage of revenue, decreased to
30.7% in 2022, compared to 35.1% for the same period
in 2021.

Operating profit increased to HK$28.2 million in 2022,
or 10.7%, compared to HK$6.9 million in 2021 due to
substantial fair value gain on revaluation for investment
property of HK$29.5 million. If excluding the other
revenue and gains and fair value gain on investment
property, we reported an operating loss of HK$10.3 million
in 2022 while 2021 was HK$1 million in 2021. Net profit
for year 2022 was HK$27.9 million, an increase of HK$24
million from comparable period of 2021.

As of 31 December 2022, Datronix balance sheet remains
stable, with cash balance at HK$136.7 million, and no
issuance of any bank loan.

MARKET REVIEW

Communication and Networking

Communication segment reported HK$50.7 million for
year 2022, compared to HK$64.6 million in 2021, down
21%. This segment contributed 19% of the Group’s total
revenue.

Data Processing

Sales for this segment were HK$34.8 million in 2022,
an increase of 11% from 2021. The customers in this
segment had shown improvement at their end market
demand. Data processing segment contributed 13% of the
Group's turnover.

ERHmE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2 [ [o] B
EREBEITHRETHREPEREZNK
Z ERERIEALCENSER EER
BEHEENEERAZIARERENSE
RARZEMWEESE - EENEER
20225 W A $5262,400,00058 7T » M2021
F £243,600,000/ T © #BR7.7% ° 2022
FEF T P& E80,700,00058 7t » M &= F G
Hi 585,400,000 7T © 2022 F EF| E T &
£30.7% ' M2021FEFHHE35.1% °

gEFBR 2021 FH 6,900,000 i
Z 2022 £/ 28,200,000 BBt - HEHE
2 10.7% ERHAREVEEGNMEE
WA 29,500,000 7B 7T o MBRE MU AR
Wk BRENENGEERE @ HME 2022
FHK/EERES 10,300,000 FET - m
20214 [2) Hi 538 51,000,00058 JT ° 2022
FEFE A27,900,000 7T 0 8202145 E
HA % 4124,000,00058 7T °

FA2022F 128318 » BERFNEE W
MR AEIFEBE » W23 136,700,0008 7T »
I B ATEIRITERS -

T 4 [O] BR
B R A
R2022% - B 2 &0 8 E HE &K
50,700,0003 7t » 120214 %64,600,000
BT BD21% c O BEMASEBE
EEEM19%

HEEE

20 S 6 & 58 534,800,000/ T 0 B
2021FEBIN11% c ZDBWEFELRIHT
BERFEEMARE - BIBERED DEAE
REBMAEEEENIZ% o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Industrial Application

Industrial application segment demonstrated a stable
demand for year 2022. Segment sales reported at HK$93.7
million in 2022 compared to HK$87.2 million, an increase
of 7% from 2021. The industrial application segment
contributed 36% of the Group revenue.

High Precision and Reliability Segment

This segment demands precise technology, advance
technical know-how and good workmanship by the Group.
The sophistication of workmanship aids the Group to
achieve a higher margin on our products. Sales on high
reliability segment reported HK$83.2 million in 2022,
compared to HK$60.4 million in 2021, an increase of
38%. This segment contributed 32% of the Group’s
revenue.

ACHIEVEMENT AND AWARDS

In recognition of our quality, value of our products and of
the Group's service and performance, Datronix has to date
received 42 awards from our customers.

LOOKING FORWARD

Manufacturers are currently experiencing concerns related
to inflation and economic uncertainty, and these will
setback the operating performance for the Group. With
the rising costs of labour, Datronix will continue to look
for automation to our production process to increase
efficiency and remain competitive. For the past year, we
have been actively pursuing different opportunities and
diversifying our revenue streams. We have been actively
involved in research and development on different
horizons on the electronic consumer segment. We look
forward to balancing out the cost factors while broaden
our products and segment offerings in the coming years.

TEREAYMm

R0 TXEAYRIBREARBRE

FER-M2022FZ D BN EE R H®

93,700,000 7t * ™M20214 A87,200,000

B BRT% c TEERYE D BERA
EEBEEIEN36%

SmAUEEERD
ZoBANARNEBENRZ R - £ERM
RERAHIZ - BN IFEBRES
WERERSESHFE - R2022F - 5%
ASEEERD S5 A83,200,000
ﬁﬁ}?\\‘2021¢3%60 400,000 T » ® R
38% o WD EBERIARBEE EREMN32% °

5493 2]
EENRESCERERSEF ARLQE
RIE URBAEERER  RERKRER
HRNEE -

& 2% 3R

HEBEMN EEHBERKRNEENEE
IéffEEﬁE’JFE EREREENKRR -8B
EEHMALT  BEENESEBR IR
LEBRTSRADLL  UESHERLR
BFHEFH -EBEN-—F8 EMA—ER
BERTENEELERMAHBARES
Bt RMEBSEBEEFEREIT
EEEAE - RMBER T A HKEF
BRA - ARBEARMNERNTSOM -
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue for year 2022 reported at HK$262.4 million,
an increase of 7.7% compared to HK$243.6 million in
same period of last year. Gross profit margin was 30.7%
compared to 35.1% in 2021. Our operating profit was
HK$28.2 million, when compared to HK$6.9 million for
the same period of last year. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$27.9. million in 2022 while we
reported loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$3.8 million in 2021.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total equity
of approximately HK$850.3 million (2021: HK$878.2
million), and cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$136.8 million (2021: HK$208.2 million), which were
predominately denominated in US dollars and Renminbi.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had not
arranged for any banking facilities and other resources for
financing. With the above cash on hand, the Group has
adequate resources to meet its working capital needs in
the near future.

The Group has strong financial position. There were no
bank and other loan for the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Group had limited exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations in normal business transactions as most of its
accounts receipts and payments are in US dollars.

EEET

RERMBOME

2022F K& ¥ % 5262,400,00058 T © B
= F B HI#9243,600,00058 JTHE IN7.7% °
2022F BRI EA30.7% » 2021 B
35.1% ° I MY & & R )8 228,200,000
It EF £6,900,0008 T 0 IREREMLEF
#327,900,0007 7t » 3K 720214 Bl %
B IR R FE(L E5183,800,00058 7T ©

nBEe MERBERBFER

MA2022%F 128318 AEB 2R
48 %8 49 850,300,000 5T (20214 :
878,200,000 x) - REeERERBHE S
1B A #£136,800,000 5t (20214 :
208,200,000 L) » TEUETRARYE
BEAL -

BE202F 128318 LEE - "AEFTE
ZHEMRITEEREHMRMEZH - K
SERBELMZERS EUENSERTR
BRZEBESEE -

REEZTBARRIBEE - ﬁimninﬂ
S1HIEFE  REBTHERBRITERREM
Em °

HRAEBEABORERSXZBRZHIRIER
WARSHEIUERTREN  BREZHR
PR 2 SN R B LB o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

i & 53 T

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed
approximately 1,114 personnel around the world, with
approximately 94 in Hong Kong, 600 in the PRC and 420
overseas. The Group has a staff education sponsorship
program and also provides training courses to staff on
operation system, product and technology development,
and product safety.

The remuneration policy for the Group’s employees is
reviewed by management on a regular basis. Competitive
remuneration packages will be offered to employees
based on business performance, market practices and
the performance of individual employees. The Group has
adopted a mandatory provident fund scheme for its Hong
Kong employees.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liability as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has capital commitment outstanding at the
year end and contracted but not provided for property,
plant and equipment of HK$6.9 million in the financial
statements (2021: HK$4.7 million).

EE R FFENHIE

H2022%F 128318 » AEERZIREH{E
B#E1,114K > HREBHOBMAA » FED
H600A » B EL20A - AEEREE
TEINEME > TRESIRM ﬁ%ﬁ“aﬁ
AZE ERRENER URERRS
EIIRE -

EEEEEHRNASREZREFMEK
R-AKBEEEZEXEARRE WHEKAIR
BrEE2REOEERMEE 2HME
M WEREEBZEERMBESETE -

RRAR

A2022F 128318 AEBEEME KT
REE(2021F  #|) o

BEKIE

TEERFREEBRYVE BEREK
BrER N ERRBERRBEEZRE
BB AR EYE 56,900,000 5T (20214
4,700,000 JT) °
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siu Paul Y., aged 82, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, is the founder of the
Group. Mr. Siu is also a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the Group’s overall business strategy and formulation
of corporate plan. Mr. Siu holds a master's degree
of science in engineering and a bachelor degree of
science from the University of California, Los Angeles
in the US. He has more than 30 years of experience in
sales and manufacturing of magnetic components as
well as the sales of other electronic components for
telecommunication and data processing systems and other
electronic systems.

Ms. Shui Wai Mei, aged 77, is the Vice Chairman of the
Group responsible for the Group’s general administration.
She has more than 20 years of experience in business
development. Ms. Shui joined the Group in 1975 and is
the spouse of Mr. Siu Paul Y..

Mr. Ronald Siu, aged 39, is the Vice Chairman of the
Group. Mr. Siu holds a master degree of science in
accounting and finance in London School of Economics
and Political Science in the UK and a bachelor degree
of science in business administration with Cum Laude
(Honors) from the University of Southern California in the
US. Mr. Siu has more than 8 years working experience
in the field of financial markets, corporate finance
and investment management. He was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company on 23 April 2007
and resigned on 19 September 2008. Prior re-joining
the Group, he worked as a corporate finance manager
in a financial institution and as an investment manager/
research analyst in an asset management firm. Mr. Ronald
Siu re-joined the Group on 1 April 2015 and is responsible
for the sales & marketing and investment management of
the Group. Mr. Ronald Siu also sits on boards of various
companies within the Group. Mr. Siu is the son of Mr. Siu
Paul Y and Ms. Shui Wai Mei and the brother of Ms. Siu
Nina Margaret.

Eégiﬁﬁﬂﬂbqﬂgﬁg
DlRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - CONTINUED

Mr. Sheung Shing Fai, aged 74, is the General Manager
of the Group. Mr. Sheung is also a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is responsible
for the Group’s business and technology development.
Mr. Sheung holds a bachelor degree of science in
electronic engineering from the National Taiwan University
in Taiwan. He has more than 20 years of experience in
sales and manufacturing of magnetic components and
other electronic components for telecommunication and
data processing systems and other electronic systems.
Mr. Sheung joined the Group in 1988.

Ms. Siu Nina Margaret, aged 46, is an Executive Director
of the Group. Ms. Siu holds a MBA degree with emphasis
on Finance and Certificate in International Business in
Loyola Marymount University and a bachelor degree of
arts with major in business economics from the University
of California, Los Angeles in the US. She has more than
3 years experience in the US syndication loan market on
major listed companies in the US. Ms. Siu is responsible for
the finance and marketing of the Group. Ms. Siu joined
the Group as a Non-executive Director on 31 May 2000,
and re-designated to Executive Director of the Group on
7 July 2005. Ms. Siu resigned on 31 December 2011 and
was reappointed as Executive Director on 1 January 2013.
Ms. Siu is the daughter of Mr. Siu Paul Y..

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 82, was
appointed as an Independent Non- executive Director
of the Company in March 2001. Mr. Chung is also a
chairman of each of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. He is a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong. Mr. Chung is serving as consultant
to numerous commercial enterprises, local district
associations, trade unions, owners corporations and
building management professional associations. Mr. Chung
is also an independent non-executive director of S E A
Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
— CONTINUED

Mr. Lee Kit Wah, aged 68, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
August 2011. Mr. Lee is also a chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Lee graduated from University of Toronto in 1979 with
a bachelor’'s degree in Commerce. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lee was trained at Price Waterhouse
(presently PricewaterhouseCoopers) in Hong Kong from
1979 to 1984, and worked at F. S. Li & Co., Certified
Public Accountants between 1985 to 1988 first as an audit
supervisor and then as an audit manager. He has been
practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong
since 1988 and is the managing director of an accounting
firm, Katon CPA Limited. Mr. Lee was an independent
non-executive director of ITC Corporation Limited
(presently PT International Development Corporation
Limited) from 23 July 2004 to 28 March 2017, a company
is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("the Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek, aged 67, was appointed
as an independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in July 2016. Mr. Wong is a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Arts degree. Mr. Wong has over 30 years of experience
in Hong Kong and overseas manufacturing industry with
extensive exposure to various managerial duties, including
corporate management, internal control, corporate
secretary, acquisitions and mergers, re-organizations,
introduction of technologies, establishment and
construction of new manufacturing plants, marketing and
trading.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Bradley D. Turner, aged 66, is the Vice President and
General Manager of all U.S.A. based operations for the
Group. Prior to joining the company in 2013, Mr. Turner
served as President for Bl Technologies Components, and
has over 33 years’ experience of operations management,
sales, and engineering of magnetic and other passive
electronic components. Mr. Turner holds a BS from
Azusa Pacific University, an Master Degree in Business
Administration from California State Polytechnic University,
and several US patents for electronic component design
and manufacturing.

Ms. Mok Sim Wa, aged 44, is the Finance Manager of the
Group. She is responsible for all finance and accounting
functions of the Group. Ms. Mok obtained a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of
South Australia and a Higher Diploma in Accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of the Hong Kong Institutes of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Mok has over 9 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, taxation matters. She joined the
Group in 2010.

Mr. Ng Chan Chung, aged 59, is the Operation Manager
of the Group. He is responsible for the management of
the Group's operations in Shunde, the PRC. Mr Ng holds a
Bachelor of Science in Electronics from Open University of
Hong Kong and a Master Degree in Materials Engineering
& Nanotechnology from City University of Hong Kong. He
has over 30 years of experience in magnetic component
manufacturing industry. He joined the group in 1983.
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The Directors present herewith their annual report and the
audited financial statements of Datronix Holdings Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the
Company, “the Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial year is as
follows:
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Percentage of
the Group’s total

Sales Purchases
KR HEEE
BHERE BB
ZEDHK ZEDH
The largest customer BAEF 22%
Five largest customers in aggregate ANBRAREF ZHM 59%
The largest supplier BRAMER 12%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR ARERER 225 38%

Except that one of the five largest customers, Datatronics
Romoland, Inc., is a related company in which the
Company's director, Mr. Siu Paul Y., holds 100% of its
issued share capital directly, none of the directors, their
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers and suppliers noted above.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 6 to the
financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The financial performance of the Group for the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 86.

The financial position of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position on pages 87 to 88 and the
statement of financial position on page 176 respectively.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend (2021: HK$0.01) per share, totalling
HK$3,200,000 (2021: HK$3,200,000) for the year ended
31 December 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The Board
shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

(@) the Company’s current and future operations, actual
and expected financial performance;

(b) the Group’s liquidity position, working capital and
capital expenditure requirements and future expected
capital needs;

(c) any corporate development plans;

(d) any restrictions on payments of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders or other third parties;

(e) the level of the Group's debt to equity ratio, return on
equity and the relevant financial covenants;

(f) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;
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DIVIDEND POLICY — CONTINUED

(g) general economic conditions, the business cycle of
the Group’s business and other internal and external
factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company;
and

(h) any other factor that the Board deems appropriate
and relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for each of the
five years ended 31 December 2022 and of the assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and
2022 is set out on page 190.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Movements in property, plant and equipment and

investment property during the year are set out in note 14
and note 15 to the financial statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the operation of the Company’'s principal
business during the year, as required by Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance, including an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, an
analysis of key performance indicators, and the Group’s
environmental policies and performance are set out under
the section “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 9,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 10,
"Environmental and Social Responsibility Report” on pages
44 to 77 and “Financial Highlights and Key Performance
Index” on pages 3 to 4 of this annual report respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that has
occurred after the year ended 31 December 2022.

Risk and uncertainties

Our Group's faces several risk and uncertainty factors that
may affect the operating results and business prospects.
There may have other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those listed below which are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

The markets we serve are cyclical and sensitive to domestic
and foreign economic conditions and events which may
cause our operating results to fluctuate.

Our products are sold in highly competitive markets that
we compete in products development, product quality,
competitive pricing and adapt to technologies changes
better than us.

Our future success depends to a significant degree upon
the continued contributions of our management team and
technical personnel.

Our failure to obtain, or fully adhere to the limitations
contained in, the requisite licenses, meet registration
standards or comply with other government export
regulations may result in monetary penalties and would
have a material adverse effect on us.
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BUSINESS REVIEW - CONTINUED

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

Datronix is dedicated to create fair manner while balancing
interests of various stakeholders of our Group. We
engage our employees, customers, regulators, business
partners and community through variety of stakeholder
engagement channels.

The Group provides quality service and products to
our customers. The Group also viewed our suppliers as
strategic partner. Lastly the Group values its employees
as one of its greatest strengths and assets and strive to
provide equal opportunities to employees.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has strictly complied with applicable laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the
operations of the Group during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
There was no change in share capital during the year.
During the year, the Company did not grant any share
options. The Company adopted a share option on 6 June
2001 which remained in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of adoption. The share option scheme
expired on 6 June 2011.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the statements of changes in
equity on pages 89 and 167, respectively.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Siu Paul Y., Chairman

Ms. Shui Wai Mei, Vice Chairman

Mr. Siu Ronald, Vice Chairman (appointed on 1 August 2022)
Mr. Sheung Shing Fai

Ms. Siu Nina Margaret

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Pui Lam

Mr. Lee Kit Wah

Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Siu Ronald, Mr. Lee Kit Wah
and Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek will retire from office
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Amongst the Executive Directors, Mr. Siu Paul Y., Ms. Shui
Wai Mei and Mr. Sheung Shing Fai have each entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 22 June
2001. While Ms. Siu Nina Margaret and Mr. Siu Ronald
have entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from
1 January 2013 and 1 August 2022 respectively. Such
contracts will continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other. Each of these directors is entitled to a
basic salary, which is determined on the basis of his/her
qualification, experience, involvement in and contribution
to the Company and by reference to the market rate.
In addition, the Executive Directors are also entitled to
a management bonus of a sum at the discretion of the
Directors. An Executive Director may not vote on any
resolution of the Directors regarding the amount of the
management bonus payable to him.

Save as aforesaid, none of the directors has any existing
or proposed service contracts with any member of the
Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements,
no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its parent
enterprise was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors had the following
interests in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES -
CONTINUED

b) Associated corporation

EEZROER &

b) BB EE

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each

23

BREGE1BTZERERELRD
Personal Family Corporate
Name of corporation interests interests interests Total
NEER 1Bl AR 22 RikER NEER &t
Mr. Siu Paul Y. Datatronic Limited 1 - 199,999 200,000
mRELE (Note 2)
(Ffat 2)
Notes: Wit -

1. These shares are held by Onboard Technology Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
and in which Mr. Siu Paul Y. and Ms. Shui Wai Mei
beneficially own 90% and 10% of its issued share
capital respectively, representing 72.32% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

2. These shares are held by Data Express Limited, a
company incorporated in the Republic of Liberia, whose
entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by
Mr. Siu Paul Y..

Save as disclosed above, no interests and short positions
were held or deemed or taken to be held under Part XV of
the SFO by any director or chief executives of the Company
or their respective associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or
pursuant to the Model Code of Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies or which are required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein. Nor any of the directors and
chief executives (including their spouses and children
under the age of 18), had, as at 31 December 2022, any
interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities and options of the Company and its
associated corporations within the meaning of the SFO, or
had exercised any such rights.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than the directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions disclosed in note 26,
Related Party Transactions, item (a) of Sales to DRI, to the
financial statements constituted connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and that the Company has complied
with the requirements under chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for such connected transaction.

The Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and
Datatronics Romoland, Inc. (“DRI”) entered into a new
Datronix Master Supply Agreement on 18 October 2019
("the New Master Supply Agreement”) which superseded
the existing Datronix Master Supply Agreement dated 7
October 2016 in respect of the supply of magnetics to DRI
by the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS — CONTINUED

The New Master Supply Agreement for a fixed term of
three years from 1 January 2020 and on effectively the
same terms and conditions of the previous master supply
agreements for the supply for magnetic products entered
into by the Group and DRI including the old Datronix
Master Supply Agreement until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less than three months’
written notice. Pursuant to the New Master Supply
Agreement are to be agreed between the Group and DRI.

The Group will determine the selling price of magnetic
product required by DRI according to the Group’s current
pricing policy of such products is calculated based on a
cost-plus approach with a mark-up margin. Regarding the
methods and procedures, the management will follow
to determine, review and approve the mark-up margin,
the sales administration team will take into account the
above factors and the length of credit period offered to
DRI and determine the selling price, including the mark-up
margin and pass the quotation to the managing director or
general manager for consideration. Such mark-up margin
will be determined based on (i) the historical prices on
products with similar complexity in the same industry,
for example, similar mark-up margin will be applied
for magnetic components used in medical devices; (ii)
the historical prices quoted on previous quotations not
accepted by customers, which would serve as a benchmark
and guideline for the Group’s maximum suggested
price offered to its customers. The total purchases made
by DRI under the New Master Supply Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$54,546,000 (2021: new Master Supply Agreement was
HK$44,524,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS — CONTINUED

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, of the Company have reviewed the connected
transactions and have confirmed that the connected
transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(ii) on terms no less favourable than those available to
independent third parties; and

(iii) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
auditor of the Company provided a letter to the Board
of Directors confirming that the continuing connected
transactions:

1. nothing has come to its attention that the transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

2. nothing has come to its attention that the transactions
involving the provision of goods or services were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company;

3. nothing has come to its attention that the transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and

4. nothing has come to its attention that the transactions
have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value
disclosed in the previous announcement date 18
October 2019 made by the Company in respect of the
disclosed continuing connected transactions.
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COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company had any interest in
any competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in notes 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SCHEME IN HONG
KONG

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong to all staff. Under the
MPF Scheme, employer and employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Director(s) shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation to any affairs of the
Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on page 29 to
43 of this Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO
Limited. A resolution for its reappointment as the
Company’s auditor for the ensuing year is to be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Siu Ronald
Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the
management structure and internal control procedures
of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously observe the principles of good
corporate governance in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders and devote considerable efforts to
identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group is a global design, manufacturing and trading
company for magnetic components. Our forefront
technology and technical know-how enable us to satisfy
customers’ needs by offering customized products that
meet their reliability, quality, and delivery requirements.
The Group has customer service and logistic center
located in the U.S. to support delivery; along with our
just-in-time, one-stop solution and ship-to-stock program
to enhance our service to our customers. The Group has
also manufacturing plants situated in China and Vietnam
to provide more cost effective and competitive solutions.
In addition, the various manufacturing sites can help us to
mitigate risk and any contingencies issued arise in different
locations.

The Group periodically monitors and assesses our business
model and strategies by analysing the markets served
and explore more opportunities. By diversifying our
offerings and new markets, the Group can sustain our
competitiveness and maintain growth.

During the year, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code"”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The roles of chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company have been performed by Mr. Siu Paul Y..
The Board considered that the non-segregation has the
advantage of a strong and consistent leadership which is
conducive to making and implementing decisions quickly
and consistently.
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Code Provision A.4.1

The non-executive directors were not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Code Provision A.4.2

Under the provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment and every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, the
chairman of the Company will not be subject to retirement
by rotation or be taken into account in determining the
number of directors to retire in each year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. All
directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry of all
directors, that they have fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performances.

During the year, six board meetings were held and the
attendance of each Director is set out as follows:
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Number of

attendance
Director = N
Mr. Siu Paul Y. mREELE 6/6
Ms. Shui Wai Mei BEEXLL 6/6
Mr. Siu Ronald (appointed on 1 August 2022) BHELE (2022688 1BEME) 3/6
Mr. Sheung Shing Fai BRI E 6/6
Ms. Siu Nina Margaret mEMLL 5/6
Mr. Chung Pui Lam BT EE 6/6
Mr. Lee Kit Wah THRERSE 6/6
Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek EELEE 6/6

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary.

Each Board member is entitled to have access to
board papers and enable, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors,
being Mr. Siu Paul Y. (Chairman), Ms. Shui Wai Mei (Vice
Chairman), Mr. Siu Ronald (Vice Chairman), Mr. Sheung
Shing Fai and Ms. Siu Nina Margaret, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Chung Pui
Lam, Mr. Lee Kit Wah and Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are persons with academic and professional qualifications
in the fields of accounting, law and business management.
They provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.
Each Independent Non-executive Director gives an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company and
the Company considers these directors to be independent
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence
is pivotal in good corporate governance and Board
effectiveness.

Following mechanisms are adopted by the Board
and reviewed annually by the Board to ensure their
effectiveness and the Board considered that the
mechanism was effective for the year under review:

1. The Board must have at least three Independent Non-
executive Directors and must appoint Independent
Non-executive Directors representing at least one-third
of the Board.

2. On an annual basis, all Independent Non-executive
Directors are required to confirm in writing their
compliance of independence requirements pursuant
to the Listing Rules, and to disclose the number and
nature of offices held by them in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments.

3. External independent professional advice is available
as and when required by individual Directors.

4. The Chairman of the Board meets with Independent
Non-executive Directors annually without the
presence of the Executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL EFEZHESERERE

DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board ABRESEAELZEEARYEGME
remains informed and relevant and in compliance with ZERTHESESHEHER  FETHE
provision code A.6.5 of the Code, the Company would AGS5E  NEBAESESRHEREETEE
arrange and fund suitable continuous professional BREBESXRREE  HEFIREHA
development for the Directors to participate in order to R EE o

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The training of each director received during the year is REER > SNESHEZ ZEIRE N

summarised as below: T
Attending seminars/ Reading newspapers,
workshop regarding journals and other
financial, relevant materials
management, Legal, relating to the
Regulatory or economy and
Corporate Governance director’s profession
Elﬁﬁﬂﬁé‘,ﬂﬂ% : HEABRE
SRR ME=REN
E*"“:Siu-_ﬁs/n BE - S8
HHNE RE HitHE=REY

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Siu Paul Y. BRELE v v
Ms. Shui Wai Mei wEXZL v v
Mr. Siu Ronald BHRELE v v
(appointed on 1 August 2022)  (A2022F8A1HZ1)

Mr. Sheung Shing Fai ERBLE v v
Ms. Nina Siu Margaret RERLZL v v

Independent Non-executive BYFHTEE

Directors
Mr. Chung Pui Lam B EE v v
Mr. Lee Kit Wah THERE v v
Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek BELEE v v
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms but subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

According to the provisions of the Bye-laws of the
Company, any Director appointed by the Board either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. Furthermore, at each annual meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but
not greater than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that notwithstanding anything herein,
the Chairman of the Board and/or the Managing Director
of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account
in determining the number of Directors to retire in each
year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises
an Executive Director, Mr. Siu Paul Y. and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Pui
Lam, Mr. Lee Kit Wah and Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek.
Mr. Chung Pui Lam is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

During the year, two Remuneration Committee meeting
was held. The attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

Director 5=

Mr. Siu Paul . mRELE
Mr. Chung Pui Lam EmM kL
Mr. Lee Kit Wah THERE
Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek BELESE

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are summarized as follows:

1. To make recommendations with respect to the
remuneration of the Executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company; and

2. To review the remuneration package and recommend
salaries, bonuses, including the incentive awards for
Directors and senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and recommended to the Board the overall
remuneration policy and the remuneration package for the
executive directors and key senior management.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2022, the directors have adopted suitable accounting
polices which are pertinent to its operations and relevant
to the financial statements, made judgements and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have
prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Pui Lam,
Mr. Lee Kit Wah and Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek. Mr. Lee
Kit Wah is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.
The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were
kept by the Company Secretary. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, internal control system and risk
management system of the Group.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were
held. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Director -

Mr. Chung Pui Lam EmmEE
Mr. Lee Kit Wah THRERE
Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek FELARYE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE — CONTINUED

During the meetings held in 2022, the Audit Committee
had performed the following major works:

1. reviewed and approved the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“2021 Financial Statements”) and discussed with the
external auditors on any findings in relation to the
2021 Financial Statements and audit issues;

2. reviewed the interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2022;

3. reviewed the internal control and risk management
system; and

4. reviewed the effectiveness and performance of
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and internal
audit plan.

There was no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises
an Executive Director, Mr. Sheung Shing Fai, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Pui
Lam, Mr. Lee Kit Wah and Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek.
Mr. Chung Pui Lam is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE - CONTINUED

During the year, two Nomination Committee meeting was
held. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Director )

Mr. Sheung Shing Fai BAEEE
Mr. Chung Pui Lam EmMREE
Mr. Lee Kit Wah THERE
Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek BEELLE

The Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and the composition of the Board in consideration of
re-election of retiring Directors in 2022 Annual General
Meeting and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company during the year.

Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a nomination policy in March 2019.
In conjunction to the board diversity policy, the Board
shall consider a number of criteria on the appointment of
directors, and succession planning for directors, as well as
re-appointment of directors. The criteria include character
and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
experience, potential contributions to the Board, as well
as willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
commitment(s).

Board Diversity Policy

During the year, the Board reviewed a board diversity
policy. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on meritocracy and selection of candidate will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The nomination committee will review
the board diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
continued effectiveness from time to time.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE - CONTINUED
Board Diversity Policy — continued

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Diversity Policy and discussed the above measurable
objective and agreed that these measurable objectives
were achievable for the diversity of the Board which
contributed to the corporate strategy and the business
development of the Company.

The Board currently has 2 female Directors out of eight
Directors with about 25% female representation sitting
on the Board. The Company is of the view that gender
diversity in respect of the Board has been achieved. As
at 31 December 2022, 871 out of 1,114 employees
(including senior management) of the Group, with about
78% are female. The Company considers that gender
diversity is also achieved in its workforce as well.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the Code which includes
to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management; to review and monitor
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and directors and to review
the Group’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to
the Company’s auditor, Messrs. BDO Limited, is set out as
follows:

FriZ 4L AR %5

Services rendered

BBR T
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’'s
system of internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations
and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, the Group emphasizes on the importance of a
sound internal control system which is also indispensable
for mitigating the Group's risk exposures. The Group's
system of internal control is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems and fulfilment of the
business objectives.

The internal control system is reviewed by the Board
in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material
assets and identification of business risks. The Board is
satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and on
its own observations, the present internal controls of the
Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring
and management of risks associated with its business
activities and has implemented a practical and effective
control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash
management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and
is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to
set up an internal audit function within the Group in light
of the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business.
It was decided that the Board would be directly responsible
for internal control of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control system and risk management
system and is of the view that the systems of internal
control and risk management adopted for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are sound and are effective to
safeqguard the interests of the shareholders’ investment
and the Company's assets. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved
by the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

The Audit Committee has received the risk management
and internal control evaluation reports submitted by the
management of the Company. The reports summarised
information relating to the work carried out in the
following areas:

1. the results of selective testing of internal control
procedures, operation, and financial records of the
Company;

2. a general evaluation of risk management and internal
control systems installed by the Company; and

3. an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed
during the year under review.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and
discussed with the management. The Audit Committee
acknowledged that the management has been
progressively implementing adequate and effective
risk management and internal control systems in order
to ensure the effective functioning of the Company’'s
operations.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The policies of Anti-corruption and whistleblowing policy
are contained in the section headed “Anti-corruption” on
page 75 in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Sau Fong is the Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms. Leung is a director of a corporate secretarial
services provider in Hong Kong. The primary contact
person of the Company with Ms. Leung is Mr. Siu Paul Y.,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Ms. Leung has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2022.

REBEEI R TR - &

ERZEECWEBAREERRIMNE
PREERABEFLRE - REBETH
BBUTHERREITFENER :

1. ’Aﬂmﬁﬁﬁ*?ﬁf’?&%%ﬁ&%ﬁ
FCER RV R ARR A

2. ARBRNEAREENANBEZEGE
ETHRENMG R

3. RAFERERIE
mMnE) -

EEEBENX

ERZESCRBANBREREENWILER
EoBEREERHTEEESESERR
DERNEREENAIES FIE - LU
RABERUEE -

RESHRRBHBRK

RESHRRBHEBRENAFREISE
[REF]I—€ -

LFRE
REFLLRADAZAAWE - RL+
BE-MREBRUAARERBATZ
EE - AQATERRLTHEIEEE
BERITHASMRELE -

BB EWIRAISE3. 291K » LB R2022
FRANBLEFEREZS T AORI5/NE
B 2EE G-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4k

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #

ERREZERERLT

40



41

INS _J .-ﬂ-\A#ﬁ-ﬂ:

E/0O

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“the EGM")
of the Company are prepared in accordance with Bye-law
58 of the Bye-laws of the Company:

1. Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings may, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

2. The EGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition.

3. If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting within 21 days of such deposit of requisition,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for raising enquires

1. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings, share transfer, registration and
payment of dividend to the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, details of which are set out in
the section of headed “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

2. Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in
respect of the Company via email at the email address
at datronix@datronixhldgs.com.hk.

3. Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for
the prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS — CONTINUED

Procedures and contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

1.

To put forward proposals at the general meeting of
the Company, a shareholder should lodge a written
notice of his/her/its proposal (“Proposal”) with his/
her/its detailed contact information at the Company’s
principal place of business at 19/F., North Point
Industrial Building, 499 King's Road, North Point,
Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company.

The identity of the shareholder and his/her/its request
will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation by the
branch share registrar that the request is proper and
in order and made by a shareholder, the Board will
include the Proposal in the agenda for the general
meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders
for consideration of the Proposal raised by the
shareholders concerned at the annual general meeting
or an EGM varies according to the nature of the
Proposal as follows:

(i) At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period
must include 20 business days and excludes the
date of the notice and the date of the meeting)
in writing if the Proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or if the
Proposal is put forward at an annual general
meeting of the Company; or

(i) At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period
must include 10 business days and excludes the
date of the notice and the date of the meeting)
in writing if the Proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company at an EGM.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
its shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with its shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other
general meetings, publishing corporate communications
such as interim results and annual results, financial reports,
announcements and circulars. Shareholders may make
enquiries with the Company through channels of our
corporate website www.datronixhldgs.com.hk and provide
comments and recommendations to the Directors. Upon
receipt of enquiries from shareholders, the Company will
respond as soon as practicable.

During the year under review, an annual general meeting
of the Company was held on 1 June 2022 at which all
the Directors attended either by person or by means of
electronic facilities to communicate with the shareholders
of the Company. In addition, all corporate communications
and regulatory announcements were published by the
Company on its website and the website of the Stock
Exchange in a timely manner. The Board considers that the
shareholders communication policy is effective during the
year ended under review.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board proposes to amend the existing Bye-laws of
the Company (“Bye-laws”) in order to bring the Bye-laws
in line with the latest legal and regulatory requirements,
including the amendments made to Appendix 3 to the
Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2022.

The proposed amendments are subject to the approval
by the Shareholders by way of a special resolution at the
2023 Annual General Meeting (“2023 AGM"). A circular
containing, among other things, particulars relating to
proposed amendments together with a notice convening
the 2023 AGM will be despatched to the shareholders of
the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Datronix Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (referred to
as the “Group” or we) principally engages in the design,
manufacture and provision of electronic components.
The Group’s products comprise mainly of customized
magnetics tailored-made according to the requirements
and specifications of its customers. The principal facilities
are located in the People’'s Republic of China (“the PRC")
and Vietnam.

This report summarises several subjects of the Group's
business practices for the Environmental, Social and
Governance (referred to as the “ESG") report (referred to
as the “Report”) and its relevant implemented policies and
strategies in relation to the Group’s operational practices
and environmental protection. For information regarding
corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” in the Group's annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 (the “Reporting Year” or “FY2022").
The Board of Directors of the Group (“the Board”) has
reviewed and approved the Report to being a transparent
representation of our ESG performance in the Reporting
Year.

Reporting Framework

The Report has been prepared with reference to the
ESG reporting guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

In preparation of this Report, due diligence has been taken
to adhere to the Reporting Principles of “Materiality”,
“Quantitative”, “Balance” and “Consistency”. The
materiality assessment, as disclosed in page 47 of
this report, has ensured the Report presents the most
material ESG topics pertaining to our businesses.
Whenever necessary, the Report details any standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, or source of conversion factors used, as well as
explanations of any inconsistencies to previous reports.
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Reporting Scope

The Report content covers the Group’s ESG policies and
measures, and compliance for the entire Group. The
disclosure scope of related data includes the Group’s
head office, warehouse and manufacturing operations
in Hong Kong, Vietnam and Shunde, China, unless
stated otherwise. Our sales offices in the United States
are excluded due to its limited significance from the
environmental and social perspectives. As we establish
greater capacity in data reporting, we shall expand the
scope to include greater proportions of our businesses.
With regard to data disclosure, the reporting scope
additionally covers the Group’s manufacturing operation in
Vietnam to provide more complete representation. There
were no other changes to the reporting scope compared to
the previous reporting year.

Comments and Feedback

We make every effort to ensure consistency between the
Chinese and English versions of this Report. However, in
the event of any inconsistency, the English version shall
prevail.

The progress of the Group depends in part on valuable
comments from stakeholders. For any clarifications
or advice regarding the content of this ESG Report,
please forward your comments and suggestions to
internalaudit@datatronic.com.hk.
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Group’s mission is to operate in a sustainable manner
with our employees, community, investors, customers and
the environment. With this mission, the Group believes the
following guiding principles lead it to success:

» reducing our environmental impact through resources
conservation and waste reduction;

» creating a healthy and safe working environment;
» operating profitably;

» fostering a culture of involvement in sustainability
through stakeholder engagement; and

> enable our customers to become more sustainable
through their use of our products.

Our mission statement shows what we endeavor to be.
The journey towards it is equally as important. Business
longevity shall only be granted to those who look beyond
short-term gains and consider the external impacts they
have on the environment, social and governance.

Board Statement

As the world’s natural resources and environment continue
to deteriorate, we understand that our stakeholders have
increased their awareness and expectation for the Group's
ESG performance. Having an effective management on
the ESG issues has already become part of our business
agenda.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting, which include the
determination and evaluation of ESG related risks and
opportunities, as well as supervision to ensure the suitable
and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems in place.
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The Group established the Internal Audit Department
as a solid ESG governance structure composing staff
from Finance, Human Resource, Administration and
Quality Assurance departments. The implementation of
ESG related programmes or actions is supported by the
management of the Group with participation from all the
staff across different departments. The Board is responsible
for overseeing the risk management and internal control
mechanism to ensure all strategic plans and visions, as
well as guiding principles for ESG matters are operating
smoothly.

The assessment of ESG-related risks includes, but not
l[imited to, environment, human resources, health and
safety and compliance. These risks have been embedded
into the risk management processes including risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment, monitoring
and review processes. The result of the overall ESG
performance and ESG-related risk assessment will be
reported by the Group’s Internal Audit Department to the
Board on yearly basis for review in order to ensure that the
Group’s ESG related risks, strategies, measures and target
progress.

Materiality Assessment

Sustainable development encompasses a holistic spectrum
of environmental and social aspects. In order to harness
the related risks and opportunities, it is crucial for the
Group to determine the most material aspects. The
Group adopts the three-step process of identification,
prioritization and validation to ensure sustainability topics
are being managed and reported in accordance with their
materiality.
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(1) Identification (1) &5
The Group identified all fundamental sustainability RIBMNRE - HERERHRSES]
topics in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide. In REBZRBFABEEANAZFERRE
the context of the latest sustainability landscape, the B ERERFNIBFEZRELESE K
Group has determined the following 23 topics that EEREUT23ERAABZEBETE
are deemed to have impact on the environment and EUREBNHESEESENETE-

society through our operations.

ESG Aspects Material ESG issues for the Group

BRE -HEREREE HAKBEBEANRE #HERERSE

A1 Emissions 1. Air emissions
237 €7 ESRBE R
2. Effluent discharges
5 IR B
3. Greenhouse gas emissions
BEREHK

4. Hazardous waste management

[ BEEENEE
) 5. Non-hazardous waste management
£ REBRNER
o .
E B A2 pse of Resources 6. Energy consumption
2 4 tde BRI R
< 7. Water consumption
KEREFE
8. Packaging material consumption
BEM BB
A3 The Environment and 9. Environmental risk management
Natural Resources (including cIimate-change related)
RERAAER REREBERE
A4 Climate Change 10. Climate change mitigation
RIRZ1 HERRE
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ESG Aspects
BE -HERERER

B1 Employment
ER

B2 Health and Safety
RERZZ

B3 Development and Training
BRE RN

B4 Labour Standards
2T AR

B5 Supply Chain Management
HEsEEE

B. Social
B. &

B6 Service Responsibility
EmRBREEE

B7 Anti-corruption
RES
B8 Community Investment

HERE

Material ESG issues for the Group
HAREREANRR HEREREE

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Employment and remuneration policies
BB R HM B
Equal opportunity and diversity
FERERZ T
Occupational health and safety
BERERZ2
Employee development
EEE#R
Anti-child and forced labour
BLEETIRBHET
Supply chain management
HEEER
Sustainable procurement

AHERE
Goods/services' quality and safety
Em/BRBEERZZE
Customer satisfaction
BEFMEE
Personal data privacy protection
BAERRE
Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical
marketing communication and product labeling
HBERRE EEEHIDREMER
Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
REFRRBERITA
Community investment

HERE
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(2) Prioritisation 2) HHEX
To determine the materiality of the selected ESG AEEZFREALEHENSE
topics, the views of senior management of respective iEAEE’JEii DEERERIEE - %:t
operational regions were sought. The senior ENEARTENEEL -SEEEA
management, who possess a high-level view of all ERRNEE2E  EEMEEZENEH
the topics and have access to stakeholders’ feedback, %E’J}iﬁ* W e ,@Tﬂﬂﬁﬁaﬂﬁi&
were asked to score the significance of each ESG CHEREARTITENEEHTS
topic to stakeholder groups and the Group in each EEEJ:%IZEE SEEEMNEE-

of their perspective. Weighted according to the
proportion of production volume of each operational
region, the following materiality matrix resulted. The
topmost-right quadrant determines the topics of high

materiality.
ESG Materiality Matrix
RE -HEREREEMEME
5 o
| 17,18,20,21,22
4 16,19 <
4
S
© .
< tEd 3 | 14 ¢
ML
LR HIGH
w #{II MATERIALITY
c 3,10 © 2
o ﬁ BEEH
) 7
v |
gﬁ 2 2 ¢ 60 13 %
E 78 &
50
: 10
1| 90 239 1590 40 11,12 ©
NOT LOW
iR MATERIALITY
o |
[e] 1 2 3 4 5

Impact on business

HAKENEEN
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Highly material topics (by ranking)

EEEEMNEERESR)

Ranking Numbers Topics
BEF FF 3% &
Highest 17 Sustainable procurement
BEEM AFERE

18 Goods/services' quality and safety

| Em/ BEEEREZR
20 Personal data privacy protection
B AERHRE
21 Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing communication and

product labeling
MBERRE BERLHEIIRERER

22 Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
RESERBEFTH
16 Supply chain management
HEEER
19 Customer satisfaction
BEEREE
14 Employee development
EBEERE
13 Occupational health and safety
BExREERZE
6 Energy consumption
BEIROH
Lowest 3 Greenhouse gas emissions
REEM BERBHN
10 Climate change mitigation
4= R AR 1E
2 Effluent discharges
5 K BERR
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(3) Validation

The Board has reviewed and validated the materiality
process, and hence the Report discloses the Group’s
performance on all high and low materiality topics.
To address matters most material to the Group’s
stakeholders, topics of high materiality are discussed
in more depth throughout the Report.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that identifying and addressing
the views of stakeholders lay a solid foundation to
the long-term growth and success of the Group. The
Group engages with a wide network of stakeholders,
including employees, customers, suppliers, shareholders,
government and regulatory authorities, and as well as the
community.

The Group develops multiple engagement channels that
provide opportunities for stakeholders to express their
views on the Group’s general business conduct and
sustainability management. The engagement channels are
summarised in the following table. To reinforce mutual
trust and respect, the Group is committed to maintaining
effective communication channels with stakeholders in
both formal and informal ways. This can enable the Group
to better shape its business strategies in order to respond
to their needs and expectations, anticipate risks and
strengthen key relationships.

IRIT ?:I:M&""é}éu‘iﬁ*
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(3) % &
EZECENURREEMERFE
e ABERBEAEHEERFTESE
EMREEEMNEEZRR - BT
CESAEESNEREZENEE
FTEEHAEASEEMNEEETE
AR AR o

FHESR

REEERE BALERESHENE X
EARTEENREZRRERNIEERE
Ef -AKEEEERNSOERAS &
RES FF HEB RE BARE
EERURKEE -

FEECERZEREESNERRE &
FOEIRAKRENBEXRRTART
FEBREERES L - TRAMAZS
RE-AMERENEEREHREENES
B AEEEHBEBEARFERXNTRX
BENERFANNBEERE  £4KH
BEAEARHEXBRE  UOEBREN
FERNE  EItAERRINRERERZ -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4k

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #

ERREZERERLT

52



53

ﬁm&é%ﬁ*
ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Stakeholders
B E

Engagement channels

SRRE

Topics of interest/concern

BixE &

Shareholders General meetings Business strategies and sustainability
IR =R RRRE FHRBRUFERR
Regular corporate publications Financial performance
including financial reports and ESG B R IR
report Corporate governance
EHATHY  BREMBRERIER BHEER
B HEBaRERRE
Circulars and announcements
Direct enquiries
EEEWH
Corporate website
Ik
Employees Performance appraisals Training and development
- R =l R B R
Training sessions Employee remuneration and welfare
BEIRE & 8% M & 18 Al
Social media Occupational health and safety
R IE R BxREERZE
Equal opportunities
FEHKE
Customers Business meetings Service quality and reliability
'R EX A RBEER A5
Complaint and feedback channels Client data security
ReFRREBERE EFERZE2M
Social media Business ethics
AR [GE3ER:
Corporate website
NGIEDS
Emails
EX
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Stakeholders
B E

Suppliers
HED

Government and
regulatory
authorities

BUS R EEE P

Community
HE

Engagement channels

SRRE

Business meetings

ES A

Supplier assessment

MR

Continuous direct communication
BEEERRSE

Emails

EH

Statutory filings and notification
EEREREA
Regulatory or voluntary disclosures

EENEEKE

Community activities
HEEE
Corporate donations
PACIEEL
Corporate website
DA A h

Social media

R IR EE

IRIE - HEREBRE
ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Topics of interest/concern

BEEE

e Fair competition
APHF

e Business ethics

BRERE

e Compliance with law and regulations
B ERER

e Business strategies and sustainability
EBRBRUSEERR

e Environmental protection
RIERE

e Fair employment opportunities
NFEE®S

e Environmental protection
RIBRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to providing quality magnetics
to clients in a clean and sustainable manner. The
operational facilities in Hong Kong, Vietnam and Shunde,
China, typically engage in the processes of head office,
warehouse and manufacturing operation. Environmental
impacts in our operational facilities and offices are
managed by the Administration Department. The
Administration Department ensures strict environmental
compliance, as well as continual improvement towards
cleaner practices. Periodic reviews of the system are
conducted to ensure its effectiveness.

Aspect A1: Emissions and waste generated

The Group implements robust systems to ensure all
discharges to air, water and land are compliant with
regulatory standards. Major laws and regulations
applicable are detailed in respective sections. During the
Reporting Year, the Group did not encounter any incidents
of non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
related to air emission, effluent discharges, greenhouse
gases, wastes at all operating regions. Major laws and
regulations applicable are detailed in respective sections.

Air emissions

The Group’s air emissions are mainly released from
vehicles use, which include the emission of sulphur oxides
(SOx), nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matter (PM).
Company fleet undergoes regular maintenance which
ensures fuel efficiency, thereby reducing emissions.
The manufacturing process is also a source of air
emissions released in the factories indoor. We keep in
check indoor air quality to ensure the concentration of
acetone, cyclohexanone, methanol, isopropyl alcohol and
ethyl benzene etc. do not exceed maximum allowable
concentration and regulatory levels. Qualified third-party
testing is also carried out at least once a year, which
ensures major problems with processes are rectified.

Major applicable laws and regulations related to control
of air emissions include, but are not limited to, the "Air
Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong”, the “PRC Law
on Air Pollution Control” and the “Law on Environmental
Protection No. 55/2014/QH13" in Vietnam.

BIREE
AEBFOUBRFNABENSIRAEFS
REEENSFHMTH HLERKEE
FERESR - M B EE QA
PEMBELE AKENTHEIMLE

EEBHEBRBENRETE  THE
F'EJ’EEﬁ}EEi%L—HEiEﬁLE o NP 3548 UE B
BETERFNER AEBEHRTER
?\nJLLzLﬁE'f%,H\ﬁZX& °

BHEHA: ERYNEENNELE
AEBEBREMEINESR BEYE
R AT HOFEERIBEEEE
B RAFEE  AEBEMELEMEL
EREFEAERBBEEIER 55K
B BREREREENMNREEREEE
ENES T EERANEREREREE
o

JE 5 BEBL
AEENEREREIERBEHER &
EH AL W(SOx) ~ BE L YWINOX)M Fa AL
YI(PM)EYBERR 78 1t B) ¥ BR 8l 3 1T & HI R
B UBERBHBERRBOER - BEN
TEBRUERABERERER BRI
RERELE W@%uﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm‘%
ol Bl ERENCEENRETE
BERSAHFEMEENKF - Hﬁ BEZE
DEFT-REERNE=ZFTWA  BER
BENEAEESIMYE -

BRAREESERFEREENEELEZR
EREETERRREB(ERSREFIK
By ~ (hEE AR E B KRS RBEE)
M CGREREESES5/2014/QH135E) © B
TREBERFEBRKEFEEEERN K
EETNBRBERB N E—SEHERTL
YO BERK o
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The Group has established a pathway of air emission
reduction with a long-term perspective as a directional
target by employing following measure and initiatives.

» Engage third party evaluator to test the indoor air
quality within its factors and workplaces annually;

» Replace the vehicles with better fuel-efficiency
models;

» Maintain correct type pressure by regular inspection
and inflation;

» Ensure no idling vehicles with running engines; and

» Employ geographical information system technology
to operate most efficient routing

During the Reporting Year under review, the Group’s air
emissions from vehicles used and office operation were
recorded. The Group released 9.3kg, 0.2kg and 0.7kg of
nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and particulate matter in
FY2022.

Effluent discharges

Our manufacturing processes require a great amount of
water and effluent discharges. Such effluent is collected
and processed by qualified sewage treatment companies.
For industrial wastewater, the Group will examine the
water quality before discharge to ensure they meet the
national and local environmental requirements.

Major applicable laws and regulations related to control
of effluent discharges include, but are not limited to, the
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law” of the PRC
and the “Law on Urban Planning No. 30/2009/QH12"
in Vietnam. The Group strives to go beyond regulatory
compliance. During the Reporting Year under review,
the Group discharged a total amount of 42,805.0 cubic
metre of effluent. The Group will continue to regularly
monitor Chemical Oxygen Demand, Biological Oxygen
Demand and Ammonia Nitrogen etc. to ensure no adverse
environmental impacts result from effluent discharges as
well as to set achievable targets in future years.
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BMEBMUAT HieMEE -

> BFEBFE=AFEEEBARERER
MITESHINEAZRERE

> RERFTRFTSREERARRENR

> EHRENARIEURGTERNE
WirBERES

> WRRIEZERPIHRERE

> BRAMEBEEERGERMREERSN
fY % 4R

RABBEFEES  KEEHRSRERES
BHEREY HRECYNBEBRNYERE
2RIBEI3FR02F=MO7F R o

U5 K B
EMANEERBRTEREBKMEKGE
B LW EEKIHEERNEABBRRER
BRI - BRI ERENK  AEBEEERA
HAEHKEETRE  UBRKRFSEZRMN
HHHERRER -

BRAREEZESSKERERENEELER
EREETERBRRAECKTRE SF
i) & i = <4 47 &8 JE 5530/2009/QH12
) AEEBBROIBBESSHREE-
RABBENEER  &NEBHHEH5K
42,805.03 73K o AREE S E B EE AL 2
FEE AEYEEERSRE  UBRKHE
EARERTEHREERTREE Wi
BERERRFEATERNEEZ -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4k

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #

ERREZERERLT

56



57

ﬁm&é%ﬁi
ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Greenhouse gas emissions

Climate change adaptation and mitigation is no longer
only a subject of international agenda, but highly relevant
to all members of society.

To implement an effective approach to climate change
mitigation, it is important to have a comprehensive
understanding of the carbon emission sources of the
Group. The Group's carbon footprint, presented in the
table below, is primarily due to electricity consumption
during production processes, accounted under Scope |l
emissions. During the Reporting Year under review, the
Greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group are
presented as follow:

BEREHKFEBERIREE

ZHRR{BRSEABNRETBERIRER
EENEE mMEMBHEREHYE RN
B S EZHERIARBEEZLRABFE

RNWEBELE  UARD/VEETRADE
REBEHNNIHE -

RERBUFEEBREEL  AEEL
AZEEERFE - MTREHAR A
SENBREFEERELEERE  BRE
B8 - RACDBEFER  AEEELSR
REFHREBNTHR :

Greenhouse gas emissions!” Unit FY2021 FY2022
BERBERO Efr 20215 20224
Scope | (Direct Emissions) tCO,e 80.2 59.8
gE1 (ERER) “EtHREE
Stationary combustion tC0e 303 18.6
BERER “EtHRER
Mobile combustion tCO,e 49.9 412
RBRER “ERES
Scope Il (Indirect
Emissions) tCOe 2,384.0 2,688.0
8E2 (BEER) “aiRES
Electricity purchased tCOe 2,384.0 2,688.0
BENEND “aiRES
Scope Ill (Other Indirect
Emissions) tCOe 26.0 217
#E3 (At ERIR) “aiRES
Fresh water and sewage
processing (electricity
use) tCOe 26.0 27.7
RKRERERRE) —EtRER
Total (Scope I and I1) tCOe 2,464.1 2,747.8
@zt (#E1R2) “EkES
(Scope I, l'and 1Il) tCOe 2,490.1 2,775.5
(BE1 - 2R3) “EfREE
Carbon intensity (Scope I'and I1) tCO,e/hundred thousand pieces of production volume 7.06 9.23
BRE (EE1R2) “ERER/STEALESR
(Scope I, II'and I1I) tCO,e/hundred thousand pieces of production volume 7.14 9.33
(BE1 - 2R3) “ELBER /BTENLESR

" Boundary has been set using GHG Protocol's widely-used operational control approach

0 R GHG Rz ERNRERHLERE TR
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In 2023, the Group aims to maintain the same or lower
level of greenhouse gas emissions of this year. The Group
will continue feature upgrades of the building facilities and
installations and monitor the electricity usage on a monthly
basis and follow-up with those exceeding the normal
usage standards. The Group will continue to review the
effectiveness of the existing initiatives and set achievable
targets in future years.

Major applicable laws and regulations related to
greenhouse gas emissions include, but are not limited
to, the "Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)”, the “Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC” and the “Law
on Environmental Protection No. 55/2014/QH13" in
Vietnam. The Group is committed to reducing our carbon
footprint. Scope | and Il emissions are addressed through
our energy reduction initiatives (See Section: A2.1 Energy
Consumption). Scope Il emissions incur throughout our
value chain, and we employ the following measures to
minimise such emissions.

»  Cut business travels whenever possible through video
conferencing;

»  Select direct flights for unavoidable business trips; and
» Promote paper recycling at office premises.

Waste management

The typical waste generated in the Group’s office and
operational sites are basically all non-hazardous. The
generation of hazardous waste, including resiniferous
waste, packaging cans, plastisol waste and organic
solvents, has been identified and confirmed as immaterial
to the Group’s ESG operation. The disposal methods of
hazardous waste are landfill, recycled and incineration by a
qualified contractor in compliance with the “Environmental
Protection Law” of the PRC.

The Group has established clear and concrete guidelines
on the waste management. The amount of disposed waste
is recorded and matched with contractors’ reports to
ensure they are entirely disposed in the most appropriate
manner.
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AEER2023FNEERRFESEER
RERNWBEREHBKTE - KEETH
BEHETRERESBIEETHE I
BRERFAESERRBERBEEFRAELE
MER - B AEBEREERTRERE
FERIRRSR » WHIERREFAIERNEEZ -

FTEBARBERBHERNEELRBE
BARBRAER IS RE RO (B8 L0
FINE) (FEAREMB AR TN
JAVE) Ml m (GRIER#EE5E55/2014/QH13
) o REBEBOABD KM o &
1R B B2 3 3B 3R P9 Y B R B2 R 2R R
R (BFSREEA2NEEEREEF) - EEI
FRRBEMNEEEEEPESL  RAKE
BUTHEESLBHERBEZERRK -

> BURBBREASERIHE

> WHEREEESR BEEEM R
> HTEIFSHERKREU -

BEEYER

AEBEERAENEESFELENESE
NEZEABEEEY HELEBEEEEY
BREEEEEY BERLE SHhEEY
REEHAECHIIRBEREARENER
B HERERIIEFMEAFEERE -
BREVHIHEEREEARMEE T
WRKE BLEREEARNFTEPECGRER
EEINWER -

AEBEESERRSIHERENRRBET
BERMEE REGTEENEYE I EK
BENBREEATE  UABRKREMUKE
ENSAZEZRE -
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Major applicable laws and regulations related to control of
non-hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the
“Waste Disposal Ordinance” of Hong Kong, “Solid Wastes
Pollution Prevention and Control Law” of the PRC and the
“Law on Environmental Protection” in Vietnam.

Seeking to contribute to the closed-loop economy, we
will continue to review the effectiveness of the existing
initiatives and set achievable targets in future years. We
employ the following measures and initiatives to reduce
the generation of non-hazardous waste and to raise
recycling rates.

» Collect and recycle all the copper wires and soler
wires waste generated during the manufacturing
process in order to minimise waste disposal to landfill;

» Take solid measures to minimise our paper usage and
waste in our office-based operations by monitoring
the printing volume;

» Provide paperless billing options for customers and
impose smart printing modes for staff; and

»  Encourage the staffs to use electronic communications
for directory forms, reports and storage when
possible.

During the Reporting Year under review, the
non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group are as

ERARERENEEERYNEREEE
REREERRREB(ENEERAG) -+
B ([ B8 BE R 75 RIRIE 06 5) M rE
(I&iﬁl{% /£>>

RTHRREEMHER  BASEES
ERAEEBNBERE  AHERREF A
BEENER RPREUTHEEMNEER
BMOBEBRMNWELELRSEYER -

> WENDWHEBRTEENFENR
SARGEEY)  LRER D N RIEE
SHEE;

> BEHYEER BREERORE |
ERVPAEZEBRINERERAIR
5,

> AREFPRHEMLTBERRA/ET
REHESETODES K

> BREIRTREAEFEMANE
ITEHERE BENFRIE-

LTENBAEERAOBEFEFERER
EEEYSE

follow:

Non-hazardous Waste Unit FY2021 FY2022
BREBRD Efu 20214 2022
Landfill tonne 0.2 0.3
#iE i}

Recycled tonne 15.2 28.9
EIl i

Incineration tonne 52.8 56.7
pald W

Total non-hazardous waste generated tonne 68.2 85.9
EENBEZERYAE Wi

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonne/hundred thousand pieces of production volume 0.20 0.29
EEBERENEE W,/ BtEHEER
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Aspect A2: Use of resources

The Group is committed to continually improving its
efficiency in the use of resources on our operations and
production line through variety of operational control,
technology enhancement, staff awareness raising as well
as compliance with relevant government policies and
environmental legislations. During the Reporting Year, the
Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations related to the use
of energy and water resources at all operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable are detailed in
respective sections.

Energy

The Group’s energy profile consists of use of electricity,
diesel and gasoline for office and site operations. At each
site, we keep accurate records of the consumption of fuel
and electricity for monitoring purpose. By determining
energy-intensive operational processes and equipment,
financial and human resources are channeled to areas in
which energy efficiency may be raised the greatest. During
the Reporting Year under review, the energies consumed
by the Group are as follow:
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EEA2 : ERER

FEBRNEBEEEELRY R RE
A oREEIZEUARETHBERFEE
MREESR  THRESEERMANEEN
LEREFERERNRER - RAFE K
EEERMEEEHBRYRBEEMREST
REERKEREANHEBEERERNS
e TEEANERERFRBBED -

BER

AEBEWRRASEBEERAE D - LA
R EEES M RMEAREEENM
RME N EFERSE  UMEZ A - B8
RREENRERENZE  SIEHBERN
ANERREEZRREAREREAEN
?EiEﬁ°LXTﬁH%ZIK$.EAZF@§§$J§ﬁ
AEEMNEEREZERERE

Energy consumption FY2021 FY2022
HRERE 20215 20224
Direct kWh 288,803.6 213,405.8
B TRE
Diesel kWh 109,964.5 76,632.7
b TRE
Gasoline kWh 169,773.3 136,261.3
b TRE
LPG kWh 9,065.8 511.8
RILAHR TRE
Indirect kWh 3,535,791.0 3,946,527.5
k3 TRE
Electricity purchased kWh 3,535,791.0 3,946,527.5
BENED S
Total (Direct and Indirect) kWh 3,824,594.6 4,159,933.3
e (EEMER) TRE
Energy intensity kWh/hundred thousand pieces of production volume 10,962.33 13,977.62

EREE

TRE/BTENLESR
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The Group is committed to minimising fuel and electricity
consumption. During the Reporting Year, offices and
facilities have invested resources to the following
initiatives:

» Separate light switches for different light zones in the
premises;

» Extend the use of energy efficient lighting tubes and
provision of light zoning in all the premises;

» Clean the air filter of the air-conditioners monthly to
improve the cool air flow efficiency;

» Carry out regular leakage checks and replacement
of pressure gauges, pressure hose and connectors
of air compressors to reduce possible leakage of
refrigerants;

» Adopt water-cooled central air conditioning systems
that can save considerable amount of energy;

» Replace heavy-polluting vehicles with more energy
efficient models; and

» Arrange server racks in “hot” and “cold” aisles
configuration to prevent hot and cold air from mixing,
and hence improve cooling efficiency of the data
centre.

Water resources

At the Group, the offices and facilities withdraw water
from municipal water supplies and surface water
abstraction in which the quality of surface water
abstracted is managed by the Administration Department.
We have not encountered any problems in sourcing water
fit for operation purpose. However, water resources should
not be taken for granted and conserved to ensure a
sustainable future.
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In order to reduce wastewater, the Group practices the
following initiatives to curtail our water consumption
currently and continue to review the effectiveness of
existing initiatives and set achievable targets in future
years.

> Raise staff awareness in water saving in production
and office operations through education and
promotion;

» Regularly check piping and dripping taps for leakages
and damage, and ensure their prompt repair;

» Monitor water readings at regular intervals when
no water is used to ensure against hidden water
leakages; and

> Give priority to effective water-saving products, such
as the adoption of low or dual flush toilets, and
low-flow faucets or water outlets.

During the Reporting Year under review, the water
consumed was merely for commercial and manufacturing
purposes. The Group consumed a total of 44,832.0 cubic
metre of water, resulting in a water intensity of 150.64
cubic metre per hundred thousand pieces of production
volume.

Packaging material

Finished products at the Group uses packaging material
that include paper and plastic packaging material. The
Group aims to consider more sustainable approaches
to product packaging early in the design phase unless
customer’s specified packaging requirements. During the
Reporting Year under review, the details of packaging
material consumed for finished products are presented as
follow:
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Packaging material consumption FY2021 FY2022
BRMEEHE 20215 20225
Paper packaging material tonne 62.7 54.8
HEAEMB I
Plastic packaging material tonne 21.3 14.2
BREEMH g
Total packaging consumption tonne 84.0 69.1
BEMBEEER i}
Packaging consumption intensity tonne/hundred thousand pieces of production volume 0.24 0.23
EMBRE M,/ BtEHEER
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Aspect A3: The environment and natural resources

The Group constantly seeks to integrate sustainability
principles into the event management, such as aiming to
reduce waste generated during events. We strive to build
an eco-conscious culture that ingrains positive lifestyle and
habits among employees. For corporate social activities
and other events, low-carbon dietary choices and products
from social enterprises are prioritised. Waste reduction
plans are rolled out for larger-scale events.

At some locations, our new staff induction training
includes an eco-awareness component. As staff becomes
eco-aware, small contributions are made to saving the
environment, and pave the way for future sustainability
endeavors of the Group.

With the integration of policies maintained in the
sections headed “Emissions” and “Use of Resources”
above, the Group strives to minimise our impacts to
the environment and natural resources. We ensure our
operation by-products do not degrade the atmosphere,
and surrounding water and land bodies. We mitigate
against climate change impacts through our energy and
water conservation efforts.

Aspect A4: Climate Change

Albeit in the early stages, the Group has commenced
the integration of climate change risks within our
business strategies. During the Reporting Year, the Group
conducted an assessment into climate-related risks, which
are likely to have influence on our business, and relevant
actions taken in response to these risks.

The extreme weather is a significant climate-related issue
to the Group. The Group is conscious that the frequency
of extreme weather, such as storm and flooding, has been
increasing and could cause direct damage to constructions
and the Group’s assets. The Group has acquired
insurance covering fire, flood and typhoon damages to its
merchandise, furniture, fixture and fittings. Moreover, the
supply chain disruptions may occur if our suppliers also
suffer from the extreme weather conditions. The Group is
striking to increase climate resilience so that the influences
on operation can be reduced to minimal. After our
assessment, the risk of exposure to the extreme weathers
that cause the operational and supply chain disruptions is
relatively low. Recognising the possible impact of extreme
weather to the safety of our employees, we have clear
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work arrangements in case of adverse weather conditions, EERMESHMN\REREER
such as Black Rainstorm Warning and Typhoon Signal
No.8, with reference to the Code of Practice in times of
typhoons and rainstorms.
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Going forward, the Group will continue to review the
impact of climate change on its business operations on a
regular basis and implement control for significant risks
to enhance its resilience and adaptability to such climate
change.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group ingrains social responsibility into all aspects
of its operations. The Group values its employees as one
of its greatest strengths and assets. Maintaining honest
and authentic dialogue with staff, the Group seeks to
address their needs and views that ensure our conduct is
responsible at all times. We commit to providing fair and
safe working and career environment for its employees
in order to attract, develop and retain the best talents.
Furthermore, the Group commits to the delivery of quality
products grounded on ethical business conduct and supply
chain management, as well as to meaningful engagements
with the community.

Aspect B1: Employment

The Group aims to provide equal opportunities to
individuals regardless of gender, race, national or ethnic
origin, religion, cultural background, disability, marital
status, family status, sexual orientation, age or political
opinion. As at the end of the Reporting Year, the Group
employed 1,031 employees, of which the workforces
in terms of gender, age group, employee category and
locations are presented in the below charts respectively.

Workforce by gender
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Workforce by employee category Workforce by region
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Based on the principles of fairness and equality, the
Group’s staff handbook stipulates clear policies relating
to relevant labour laws, regulations and industry
practices, covering areas such as compensation, dismissal,
promotion, working hours, recruitment, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity and other benefits and welfare etc.
Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, “Employment Ordinance” in Hong Kong, the
“Labour Law"” of the PRC and “Labour Code No. 10/2012/
QH13” in Vietnam. During the Reporting Year, the Group
did not have legal issues of non-compliance all major
applicable laws and regulations related to employment at
all operating regions.

Remuneration and welfare

Employees of the Group are remunerated at a competitive
level and are rewarded according to their performance
and experience. The promotion and remuneration of
the Group’s employees are subject to periodic review
according to staff performance. Employees are entitled
performance bonus and maternity allowance (for female
employees). Details are set out in the internal working
regulations which are made available to every employee
in the Group to ensure information transparency on the
responsibilities and rights of employees.
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Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

The human resources department conducts a
comprehensive recruitment review process to ensure
that the data provided by the candidates is accurate. The
Group's recruitment and promotion process are carried out
in a fair and open manner for all employees; employees
are recognised and rewarded by their contribution, work
performance and skills, and outcomes will not be affected
by any discrimination. The certain staff with outstanding
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During the Reporting Year under review, the Group's
employee turnover rate was 56%. The charts below
present the turnover rate by gender, age and geographical
region respectively.
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Aspect B2: Workplace health and safety

It is of paramount importance to ensure a safe and
healthy workplace for our employees as the Group places
its employee’s health and safety as one of the highest
priorities in its operation. The Group is committed to
providing a healthy and safe working environment for our
skilled workers in factories and employees in offices.

The Group’s management is responsible for identifying any
actual and potential hazards and risks to each individual
and a safe and hygienic working environment. On the
production line, the factory supervisors and managers
both help to ensure all the health and safety measures are
being implemented effectively. Any non-conformities will
be corrected immediately. In case of high-level decision
is required, the factory supervisors and manager will
escalate the issues to the Group’s top management to seek
further instruction. The Group also engages third party
environmental experts to test if the indoor concentration
of hazardous air quality, noise and temperature of the
workplaces are in the permissible concentration-time
weighted average and regulatory levels.

The Group has established the Code of Practice and
Work Instructions, in which safety and health issues are
addressed, for our skilled workers to follow. Training
and work instructions will be given to new workers to
make sure they are capable of operating the production
equipment safely. For some of the manufacturing
procedures where fumes or particles may be emitted,
ventilation units have been installed to minimise the
potential safety and health risks. Since factory workers are
exposed to chemical hazardous agents, annual body check
is provided by the Group to them to ensure their health.

The Group had consecutively attained a zero rate of
work-related fatalities in the past three years. If any case
occurred, the cases would be handled according to internal
accident handling procedures and reported to the relevant
authority in compliance with the law. The filed cases
will be used as training materials to assist employees to
prevent reoccurrence. During the Reporting Year, there
were no lost days due to work injury.

Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance”
in Hong Kong, “Law on Work Safety” in the PRC and the
“Law on Occupational safety and health” in Vietnam.
Our management is also responsible for ensuring the
compliance with the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations in our working environment.
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Aspect B3: Development and training

People are our greatest assets. We tailor the macro-level
development of our human capital to the Group’s
corporate strategy. The Group develops yearly training
plans that comply with relevant statutory requirements
and cater to the needs of our staff. Internal training
programmes provided by the Group include induction
training to the new employees and on-the-job training
to the existing employees. In order to encourage
our existing employees to have a continuous lifelong
learning, the Group also offers education subsidies to its
eligible employees in variety of fields of quality system
management, business management, engineering and
technology management etc.

During the Reporting Year under review, a total number
of 392 employees have attended training, of which the
employees trained in terms of gender and employee
category are presented in the below charts respectively.
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During the Reporting Year under review, the Group
has provided a total of 6,272 training hours for staff,
representing average 6.1 training hours per staff of
which the average training hours in terms of gender and
employee category are presented as follow:
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Aspect B4: Labour Standard

The Group upholds high operating practices standard.
Child and forced labour, though seemingly irrelevant to
most developed societies, are in fact easily present in
the value chain of any business operation. To combat
against such practices, the Group is committed to prohibit
all forms of child labour and forced labour or modern
slavery, not only in our operations but also throughout
the supply chain. In addition, cases of child labour in our
businesses are averted by conducting age verification
of all job applicants to check their age and identity
documentation thoroughly during the recruitment and
employment process. With regard to the supply chain, the
Group evaluates labour practices of potential suppliers and
subcontractors with due diligence prior to any partnership.
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For our factory in the PRC, which is the Group’s main
manufacturing site, the Group has established and
implements a Voluntary Overtime Working Scheme, which
provide flexibility for skilled workers overtime work. The
rights and freedoms of every individual is protected as
no worker is mandatorily asked to work in unreasonable
working hours in our Group.

During the Reporting Year under review, the Group did
not encounter any incidents of non-compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations related to anti-child and
anti-forced labour practices at the operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, “Employment Ordinance” in Hong Kong, the
“Labour Law of the PRC” and “Labour Code No. 10/2012/
QH13" in Vietnam.

Aspect B5: Supply chain management

The Group is committed to developing and maintaining
effective and mutually beneficial working relationships
with our business partners. The major raw materials
provided by our suppliers are ferrite core, copper wires and
bobbins. The procurement process is strictly monitored by
top management and suppliers are all selected from the
Group's Approved Vendor List (AVL) in which vendors are
assessed through the Group’s due diligence procedures.

In order to ensure the supply chain as sustainable as
possible, the Group’s supplier code of conduct requires full
compliance to all applicable local and national laws. All the
Group's suppliers are required to demonstrate that they
are certified or complied with internationally recognized
environmental and safety related standards, such as
ISO9001 or IATF16949. The Group procured from suppliers
from different region during the Reporting Year at which
none of suppliers having significant actual and potential
negative environmental and social impacts came to our
attention.
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Asia (other than PRC and HK)
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Furthermore, the Group gradually takes environmental
consideration into account in the procurement process. To
integrate the environmental vision into the procurement
of product supplies, the Group seeks to ensure all its
materials or components received from suppliers free from
lead. Priority will be given to environmentally friendly
materials and office goods, so as to raise the suppliers’
awareness of sustainable development.

The Group requires its suppliers to provide Certificate of
Conformance to confirm the products’ specification. The
Group’s Quality Assurance Team will conduct a throughout
and rigorous due diligence by vendor survey and supplier
evaluation on its new suppliers along with on-site audits
to assess their product quality as well as their practices
in managing environmental and social risks. No purchase
order will be made until a new conform assessment of the
new suppliers.

The Group regularly conducts the supply chain ESG risks
assessment to determine and address the Group’s level
of exposure to country-specific, product-specific and
industry-specific risks. The Group’s Quality Assurance
Team conducts annual evaluation for existing suppliers.
For the disqualified supplier, the Group will terminate the
working relationships with them. The enhanced control
will be implemented in the workshop provided to qualified
suppliers with way to meet the Group’s criteria.
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Aspect B6: Product responsibility

The Group offers quality products and services grounded
on responsible operating practices. We commit to meeting
customer needs through innovation and sound business
ethics.

Product quality and safety

Assuring the quality and safety of our product and services
are of topmost importance. A majority of the Group’s
magnetics are customized according to the requirements
of its customers. Thus, other than the Group’s own quality
management system (“QMS"), the products manufactured
by the Group will be tested and certified by independent
third party to make sure the products are able to attain
a level of satisfaction that the Group and its customers
expect in term of quality, health and safety.

Our products are attached with necessary warnings and
instructions in form of label and product manual enabling
our customers to assess the risk in using the magnetics and
to take precautions against those risks. Our skilled workers
are also required to follow the “Non-conforming Product
Procedure” of “Company Operation Procedure” to deal
with non-conforming items and disposition of suspected
products.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not encounter
any incidents of non-compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations related to product health and safety at all
operating regions. Major laws and regulations applicable
include, but are not limited to, IATF16949, IEC950, UL/
CSA, 1ISO9001 and VDE.

In addition to the internal and external quality assurance,
the Group has Quality Assurance Department to properly
handle customer complaints. A formal complaint
mechanism handles all cases in a fair and systematic
manner. Regarding the customer-returned product, the
“Customer-returned Product Handling Procedure” of
“Company Operating Procedure” is available to instruct
our staff to process the returned products from customers.
In FY2022, there was an immaterial number of packing
related complaints. All of these complaints were properly
handled. Other than that, no products were subject to
recalls for safety and health reason.
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Ethical operating practices

The Group places great value in conducting all aspects
of our businesses with integrity and honest values. From
protection of data privacy and intellectual property to
ethical marketing communication, our robust management
approaches ensure even the most trivial of aspects is not
overlooked. During the Reporting Year, the Group did
not encounter any incidents of non-compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations related to data privacy,
advertising, labelling matters at all operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are
not limited to, “Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance” and
“Competition Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

Personal data privacy protection

The Group is committed to protecting privacy and
confidentiality of the collected personal data. The Group
has established internal policies on handling personal data
recorded from our customers and employees. We collect
data only in a lawful and fair way, for directly related
purposes of which the data subject is clearly notified.
Adhering to policy requirements, the Group maintains
the personal data storage which is secured to prevent any
unauthorized or accidental access. We ensure the data is
accurate and not kept longer than necessary.

The following steps are to make sure our computer data
bases secure and to safeguard the information we possess
about the customers.

» Install updated anti-virus software and firewall;

» Install and run network diagnostic tools;

» Back up customer data regularly; and

» Encrypt data in transmission.

We conduct periodic risk assessment. Regarding the launch
of projects that present greater risks, we conduct privacy
impact assessments to mitigate against the risks. Building
a culture of zero tolerance is dependent on effective

communication of policies. Thus, the Group invests
resources on related training and education.
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Intellectual property rights protection

Business end-use piracy is applicable to all businesses
no matter which industry or sector. In efforts to strive
for industry best practices, the Group has established
a management approach to protect intellectual
property rights. The top management are responsible
for maintaining clear record or register on the use of
legitimate software, non-infringing copies of media
material, as well as making and distribution of copyright
materials on paper. Our expectations are communicated
clearly to all employees. Ongoing assessment of
management approach is conducted through top
management reviews, as well as periodic audits on the
integrity of the record and registry.

Advertising and product labelling

Responsible marketing practices are crucial to gaining
customer trust and confidence. The Group has established
clear guidelines on the ethical usage of all forms of sales
promotion, corporate sponsorships, as well as direct
marketing and digital marketing communications. All
direct marketing and digital marketing communications,
especially product endorsements, should uphold
transparency. Ongoing assessment of policies is conducted
through periodic assessment.

All sales promotions should meet reasonable consumer
expectations, as well as be administered prompt and
efficient. Our salespersons are trained to provide
customers well complete, accurate and not misleading
information which is significant for them to make
the purchase decisions. Such information includes
the potential risks associated with the products they
purchased, such as health or safety risk, financial risk, etc.
Any illegal, unethical, discriminatory or deceptive practices,
such as abusive marketing tactics, abusive debt collection
or other improper behaviors that may pose unnecessary
risks or harm consumers made by the salespersons are
strictly prohibited.
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the
highest standards of openness, probity and accountability,
as well as to conducting business with integrity, honesty
and transparency. We adopt the lowest level of acceptance
for corruption risks to build a culture of zero tolerance to
corrupt and anti-competitive practices. The Board, with the
assistance of the internal Quality Assurance Team of the
Group, leads and oversees the Group’s entire management
approach towards anti-corruption compliance. During the
Reporting Year, the Group did not encounter any incidents
of non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations
applicable include, but are not limited to, “Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance”, “Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

Our whistle-blowing mechanism ensures that our policies
are adhered to. The internal Quality Assurance Team of
the Group conducts internal audit annually on the Group’s
operations against applicable compliances and Group
internal requirements. The consequences of breach of code
are stated in our policies, including the reporting to the
relevant law enforcement agency in case of criminal acts,
or disciplinary actions or termination of employment as
applicable. Also, the Group has designated an independent
team with a senior authority to handle the complaints
and reports. The procedures and guidelines for the proper
handling of complaints and reports are also clearly stated
in the anti-corruption policy.
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The development of robust internal controls is the key
to our management approach. We have established
anti-corruption policy on the prohibition of bribery and
corruption, acceptance or offering of gifts and advantages
and abuse of office, as well as declaration of conflict
of interests. The soliciting or accepting of advantages
from parties as a reward for or inducement to doing
any act in relation to the company’s business is strictly
prohibited. The guidelines of our anti-corruption policy
make it clear to all staff the criteria of accepting and
offering of gifts and advantages becomes beyond that
of a courtesy or token gift. Senior management is also
clearly provided guidance on what constitutes abuse of
office, such as regarding the misuse of company’s assets
for personal interest. With regard to conflict of interests,
the fundamental rule is to avoid any conflict of interest
as far as practicable. In the event of an inevitable case,
the conflict of interest is required to be declared to senior
management so that appropriate resolution actions can be
taken.

The Group promotes fair and open competition through
our anti-corruption policy on combating against
anti-competitive practices. Our policies outline clear
guidelines that prohibit cartels, and any activities of trade
associations and industry bodies which prevents, restricts
or distorts competition. The abuse of market power,
such in the form of predatory pricing, anti-competitive
tying and bundling, exclusive dealing, are also forbidden.
The Group will also provide employees of all levels
with anti-corruption trainings in order to enhance the
awareness of anti-corruption. The Group recognises that
adherence to the principles of competition is essential
to the development of long-term relationships with our
stakeholders on mutual trust.
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Aspect B8: Community investment

The Group is committed to operate as a responsible
corporate and continually supporting the economic and
social vitality of local communities through corporate
sponsorships and charitable donations. Furthermore,
the Group sees high literacy as a foundation for the
advancement of society. The Group believes public welfare
is important and necessary for the development of the
Group. We always seek to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates. As part of the Group’s
social commitment, the Group actively employs individuals
with disabilities, primarily at the operation in the PRC,
which represent 2.03% of the Group’s total workforce in
the PRC.

We believe that the development of a better future for
our community relies on joint participation of people,
corporations and the government. In addition, the Group
also encourages all employees to actively participate in
volunteer activities and environmental protection activities.
We hope it can raise their concern for environment and
society, and thus inspiring more people to participate in
community services and develop a better future for our
community.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DATRONIX HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Datronix Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 189,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to notes 5(b)(ii) and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group had goodwill of approximately HK$9,486,000
as at 31 December 2022 arising from the Company’s
acquisition of a business in 2012.

Management concluded that there was no impairment
of the goodwill based on the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) which was determined by
a value-in-use calculation based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year
period. The preparation of cash flow projections requires
significant management judgment with respect to
assumptions in relation to discount rate and underlying
cash flows, in particular future operating margin and
growth rates. We identified the impairment assessment of
goodwill as a key audit matter as it requires management
to exercise significant judgment on the cash flow
projections and the goodwill is quantitatively significant to
the consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

— Challenging the reasonableness of the key inputs and
assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation;

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budget, and considering the reasonableness
of this budget;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS — CONTINUED

Impairment assessment of goodwill — continued

Refer to notes 5(b)(ii) and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements — continued

Our response:— continued

- Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist
us in assessing reasonableness of the methodology
applied and the key assumptions used in the
impairment assessment of goodwill; and

—  Evaluating the reasonableness of the disclosures in
relation to the impairment assessment of goodwill.

We found the assumptions made by management in
relation to the value-in-use calculation were reasonable
based on available evidence. The significant inputs are
appropriately disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Write-down assessment of inventories

Refer to notes 5(b)(iii) and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group had inventories of approximately
HK$108,629,000 as at 31 December 2022 which consist of
raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods.

The Group’s management writes down slow-moving
or obsolete inventories based on an assessment of net
realisable value. Inventory will be written down where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net
realisable value is less than cost. The determination of
net realisable value requires the use of judgment and
estimates. The subsequent change in estimation will
impact carrying value of the inventories and lead to a
revision of the amount of inventories written down in the
respective period. The Group recognised a write-down of
inventories of approximately HK$954,000 for the year. We
identified the write-down assessment of inventories as a
key audit matter as it requires management to exercise
significant judgment on estimating net realisable value
of the inventories and the carrying amount of inventories
is quantitatively significant to the consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - CONTINUED
Write-down assessment of inventories — continued
Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s write-down
assessment included:

— Assessing the reasonableness of the inventory
provision policy applied by the management;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the net realisable
value of inventories estimated by the management
for those slow-moving or obsolete inventories with
reference to the recent selling prices, consumptions
and subsequent sales of inventories;

— Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
of inventories prepared by management; and

— ldentifying any physically obsolete inventories during
our observation of the Group’s inventory counts.

We found that management'’s estimation of net realisable
value and write-down of inventories are reasonable based
on the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in
the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does

not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT — CONTINUED

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit

Committee”) assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

BB EFH G ERKIE
R E

BMMERE RHERGSUERRES
FTEEHRBRERBERMEBNEMEKR
HRFURESSERAR Y HABERM
ERNZREEIRE o thREED BT (F
ARB)RBEHREIGIEDQTEFIE
e REZIERENEEMBE N - &K
MFrERABRENATRAEAEMALTE
FEEEEMEE -

SERIFRSKTHRE  BFERIER
BRENENETHENERE —ERER
PR 17 7 By B RE X 3R o SRR R4 T LUFR R
FFREEEREIE  MRESEFABECMERR
EAERAESERSUBRRERBER
1 B AR E - B B O 88 5R R AT 4
BEEK -

EREBEEBESENETETNBES
BMERTHEHE  RETHERRE
B o HATF

o LB ANEE (L F R BRFE 8 R T & B AR
EUMBBRREFEERBERRANEA
b R RBMTENEFUBHEL
Rk UREERZINEENETR
o ERRMERNER - BRIKEE
k&R RE -BRER E
BRERA - HEERAEBEH 2 L
LERBE R B RFF M B A E NIH R
RAM AR REERMEFNWER
HRERANERSS o

o THEBITHEBENRIES - BRE
BENETREF BENLEH B
SEHABEFNERERRER -

e HEESHRASHTBENBREMER
EHE AT MERKREENNSE
B ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 §4$R



BB ER &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tang Tak Wah

Practising Certificate Number P06262
Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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FEEmREMEEKRR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE2022F12831HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M &E FERT FERT
Revenue —E 3 6 262,424 243,601
Cost of sales HERA (181,751) (158,192)
Gross profit EF 80,673 85,409
Other revenue and gains H g A 7 8,983 5,504
Fair value gain on investment property & &Y% M E K= 15 29,500 2,200
Distribution and selling expenses DEREEER (18,200) (17,604)
Administrative expenses 1THEHR (72,740) (68,601)
Finance costs BM%ER (39) (36)
Profit before income tax expense  BR%i A7 % Fl 8 28,177 6,872
Income tax expense g s i 10
Current tax B HA B 18
— tax for the year - REERE (1,827) (3,992)
— under/(over)-provision in respect —iﬂ?I$F§?§§1ﬁ§?rE/
of prior years, net (TR) ' F8 245 (31
Deferred tax credit EERIRIK & 1,280 977
(302) (3,046)
Profit for the year and attributable FEZEF K42 7
to owners of the Company HE AELL 27,875 3,826
Other comprehensive income, Hr 2 E U MBEE
net of tax 11
ltem that may be reclassified RedsafoMz
subsequently to profit or loss: BmRrIER
Exchange differences on translating BHEBREFFEEY
foreign operations fE 5 Z=%8 (21,114) 5,819
ltem that will not be reclassified FAIEHHERBRNIER :
to profit or loss:
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of ENBRAZEEL MR
leasehold land and buildings held BARFZ (FHR)
for own use BER (16,264) 9,355
Changes in fair value of equity UATFEFEEEHA
instruments designated at fair Hih 2 mEK w2 ]
value through other comprehensive ITREZAVESE
income MNRBLIE 120 -
Impairment loss of leasehold land REMEEHWSER
and buildings held for own use BRAZHEEL#
recognised in other comprehensive BRABFZREERX
income (12,128) -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEHM 2 (FE) WHE
for the year and attributable to RAEQXARER AEAMG
owners of the Company, net of tax IR IE (49,386) 15,174
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FE2MH (FE) Wi
for the year and attributable to BEREQAREE AEN
owners of the Company (21,511) 19,000
Earnings per share BRER
— Basic and diluted —EARR#EE 12 HK$0.087 HK$0.012
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £k = DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EERHSIZERER DA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HR2022%12A31H
At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
2022 202145
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M &E FERT FERT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 14 492,866 541,076
Investment property REME 15 113,700 84,200
Equity instruments designated at fair LA A F{EF A
value through other comprehensive Hih 2 E U 2
income BRATE 16(a) 16,745 =
Prepayments for acquisition of BEVMX BER
property, plant and equipment R ZANRK 189 2,490
Goodwill G 17 9,486 9,486
Deferred tax asset EEBIEEE 24 272 311
633,258 637,563
CURRENT ASSETS hEEE
Inventories rE 19 108,629 106,647
Trade receivables FE W BR K 20 33,769 29,904
Prepayments, deposits and other EAER EER
receivables H & WK IR 6,341 5,578
Amount due from ultimate holding G § I SENCIE =]
company 21 122 112
Amounts due from related companies FEUX B83E A 7 FIE 21 286 257
Tax prepayment FARBAK - 1,223
Financial assets at fair value through  BA D F{EF A
profit or loss BRzemEE 16(b) 7,904 =
Cash and cash equivalents BHeREREEEHER 136,772 208,215
293,823 351,936
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables FE A BR SR 2 HL Ath FE 1S SR IE 22 19,781 42,143
Amount due to a related company FE B A Bl R IE 21 1,055 423
Lease liabilities HEEE 28 584 576
Current tax liabilities i EaE 363 2,272
21,783 45,414
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEESFE 272,040 306,522
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBAER
LIABILITIES 905,298 944,085

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA
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HFEMFIRIAR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20225612 A31H

At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
= FET T& T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 28 834 690
Employee benefits EEEA 23 18,279 19,424
Retention payable ERREE 22 3,608 4,510
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 24 32,299 41,272
| 55020 65,896
NET ASSETS EERE 850,278 878,189
EQUITY =
Share capital B A 25 32,000 32,000
Reserves fE1E 26 818,278 846,189
TOTAL EQUITY EXSEEE 850,278 878,189
On behalf of the Board of Directors REEEMm
Siu Ronald Shui Wai Mei
BHE ®mEX
Director Director
EZE =
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FEEREER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE20226F12A318ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Fair value
Property feserve
Share Share Capital ~ revaluation ~ Exchange (non- Retained
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  recycling)  earnings Total
HE Efiff
BROkE  RMEE  EARE  EBRE  ENEE  (FER  REE &if
(note 25)  (note 26(c)i)) ~(note 26(c)il) (note 26(c)il) (note 26(c)iv))  (note 26(c)vi))  (note 26(c)(ii)
(W&2s)  (W&hae(00)  (WERae(on)  (Wskzeloi)  (Br&kasioid)  (Wak2e(i)  (REk2e(c)vi))
HKS'000. HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAn Tin TAn Tin TAn Tan TAn TA7n
At 1 January 2021 WNE1F1A 32,000 57,099 (3,124) 24305 21,39 - 554,499 865,589
Profit or the year EEiE - - - - - - 3806 3806
Bxchange differences on translating BNsBaERES 2
foreign operations EREE - - - - 5,819 - = 5,819
Surplus on revaluation of easehold landand ~ EfEEAEEEZEE
buldings held for own use thRERET B - - - 9,355 - - = 9,35
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2AWEAE - - - 9,355 5819 - 3806 19,000
Didendspadhoe2se)  EWEEWEMW - oo kA 6D
At 31 December 2021 and RONENANER
1 January 2022 WNE1R1R 32,000 57,099 (23720) 233,680 27,09 - 551,925 878,189
Profit for the year EEEA - - - - - - 21,875 21875
Exchange differences on BhEHABHEE,
translating forelgn operations ERZR - - - - (21119 - - 21.119)
Deficit on revaluation of easehold landand ~ Bt AR ZEEL IR
buidings held for own use BRET/EE - - - (16,264) - - - (16,264)
Changes in fair value of equity instruments AR BT ARK2ENE
designated at fair value through other RAIEZATESS
comprehensive income - - - - - 120 - 120
Impaitment los of leasehald and and REB2AUERIRRL
buldings held for own use recognisedin -~~~ BELHREREF2
other comprehensive income REEK - - - (12128) - - - (12,128)
Total comprehensive los for the year EELAER - - - (2839) 21.114) 120 71875 (21.511)
Didendspad o 26e)  EEESWEMW) | - - - oo 4w 6
At 31 December 2022 RUNENANAE 32,000 57,099 (23.124) 205,288 6,095 120 573,400 850,278
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FEMERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE20226F12A318ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
20225 202145
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M &E FET FTET
Cash flows from operating activities RELBHERE
Profit before income tax expense BR%% A i A 28,177 6,872
Adjustments for: THIAZ:
Interest income AME WA 7 (1,234) (1,055)
Interest expenses MNEXH 39 36
Fair value gain on investment property REMEDNFERE 15 (29,500) (2,200)
Fair value change of financial assets at UAFEGFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss EtREEZATE
2E 7 (114) =
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BERREZ
equipment e 8 13,201 12,642
Changes in expected credit loss on EUWERZEAREE
trade receivables BERZEE 8 173 (255)
Changes in expected credit loss on HL A 7 U BR X 2 TE B
other receivables FEEEFEBEzE2H 8 - (2,381)
Dividend income IRE WA 7 (256) =
Gain on disposal of financial assets HESREE 2 WS (1) =
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of FEMBER, (B#)
inventories 8 954 (4,795)
Operating profit before working RITEEESBEH
capital changes A R 11,439 8,864
Increase in inventories FEEM (2,936) (18,165)
Increase in trade receivables JE LAY BR X3 (4,038) (6,065)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR e R HEAi
deposits and other receivables FEWERIE (3B n) /R (763) 11,158
Increase in amount due from ultimate FE U B 4K 928 IR =) S0 0E 12
holding company (10) (11
Increase in amounts due from related JE LSt A B 1 B R TR 1T N
companies (29) (28)
Decrease in trade and other payables e BR AR H At FE Y TR IE
D (22,969) (1,376)
(Decrease)/increase in employee benefits ~ {EE&F (R 4) /10 (2,314) 73
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS HEXBAZRS (21,620) (5,550)
Income tax paid EHFER (2,268) (2,156)
Net cash used in operating activities RKEXKBAZEELFHE (23,888) (7,706)
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FEHERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE20226F12A318ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = THERT THET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, BEWE BRERZE
plant and equipment (20,675) (34,424)
Prepayments for acquisition of BEVE -BERSZEZ
property, plant and equipment SEENET (189) (2,490)
Payments for acquisition of equity BEULAFTEFAHM
instruments designated at fair value 2HBRZBRAIAZ
through other comprehensive income NE (16,625) -
Payments for acquisition of BEULTLESAESEZ
financial assets at fair value EREEZAR
through profit or loss (8,018) -
Dividends received from equity UAFEGFAHMEE
instruments designated at fair value WaeBRAIAEZ
through other comprehensive income IR B WA 256 -
Interest received AMEWA 1,234 976
Purchase of financial assets BEULATLEFAEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss STREE (1,174) -
Proceeds from the disposal of financial HEUQAFEFABEZ
assets measured at fair value through EREEMSE
profit or loss 1,175 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFBAZHESTHE (44,016) (35,938)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETH2HERE
ACTIVITIES 34
Dividends paid 2R E (6,400) (6,400)
Repayment to/(advance from) (BEBR) B —EEE
a related company DNABE 632 (160)
Lease payments HENR (376) (560)
Net cash used in financing activities METHFRBAZAL TR (6,144) (7,120)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERERAEEAZ
EQUIVALENTS A0S (74,048) (50,764)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzHeRERARLEH
beginning of year 208,215 256,722
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes #NEEZ#EHUBEEK
on cash and cash equivalents ZRBEEE2FE 2,605 2,257
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERZBAERERALER
THE END OF YEAR
represented by bank balances and cash ERITEHRRES 136,772 208,215
Note: Wizt
Bank balances and cash included an amount of approximately BT RELEREUARBEEZE
HK$ 24,895,000 (2021: HK$46,539,000) which is denominated 24,895,0003%8 7T (20214 : 46,539,000 T) °
in Renminbi (“RMB"). Included in this amount is a sum of EHREEAE10,913,0008 T (20214
approximately HK$10,913,000 (2021: HK$11,835,000) deposited 11,835,000 7)) EERPEARLENE - AR
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). RMB is not a freely AR TS IEERRIBRER . Hia A RK
convertible currency in the international market. The conversion BN \RBEXDEARLNBEES
of RMB into foreign currency and remittance of RMB out of the R AR AN B R8BS S P 2B M 2 SMNEE
PRC are subject to the rules and regulations of exchange controls &35 B R SEHR o

promulgated by the PRC authorities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Datronix Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 15 February 2000 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 22 June 2001.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
manufacturing of electronic components in the PRC
and Vietnam and trading of electronic components to
customers in the United States of America (the “US"),
Hong Kong, and other countries. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the Group.

The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The address of its principal place of business is 19th
Floor, North Point Industrial Building, 499 King's
Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company is Onboard Technology Limited, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands. The Company’s
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Siu Paul Y.
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M HRR M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — (a)
effective 1 January 2022

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA") has issued a number
of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group:

2. FMEEMBGWEER

RWE B BREER 21&
8] - H2022F1HA1B4E X

BREMASEATZRES
SESHRNERNE BT KR

EEERZAFET o

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Onerous Contracts —

BB BB HRS £
1658 2 18R]

Faien

202156 A30R R
20198 R W B R
HENESER

FEMEH-BOK

Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
Before Intended Use

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to Reference to the
HKFRS 3 Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKFRS ~ Annual Improvements
Standards to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

The adoption of the above amendments to
HKFRSs did not have any significant impact on
the Group’s accounting policies.
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") -
CONTINUED

(b) Amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following amendments to HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to Classification of
HKAS 1 Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?
Amendments to Presentation of Financial
HKAS 1 and HK Statements —
Interpretation 5 Non-current Liabilities
(Revised) with Covenants?
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Policies’
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates’

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to
HKAS 12 Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single
Transaction’

Amendments to Sale or Contribution
HKFRS 10 and of Assets between
HKAS 28 an Investor and its

Associate or Joint
Venture?

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale

HKFRS 16 and Leaseback?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

E No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for early adoption

The Group is currently assessing the impact
of these amendments and does not expect
the adoption of them will result in substantial
changes to the Group's accounting policies and
financial statements.
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DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") —
CONTINUED
(b) Amendments to HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify that the classification
of liabilities as current or non-current is based
on rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
a liability and explain that rights are in existence
if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also
introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other
assets or services.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HK Interpretation 5 (Revised),
Presentation of Financial Statements -
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

The amendments clarify that if the right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months is subject to
an entity complying with conditions after the
reporting period, then those conditions would
not affect whether the right to defer settlement
exists at the end of the reporting period for the
purposes of classifying a liability as current or
non-current; and for non-current liabilities subject
to conditions, an entity is required to disclose
information about the conditions (for example,
the nature of and date by which the entity
must comply with the condition); whether the
entity would comply with the conditions based
on its circumstances at the reporting date; and
whether and how the entity expects to comply
with the conditions by the date on which they are
contractually required to be tested.
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e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB RAMEREEN—H
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") —
CONTINUED

(b) Amendments to HKFRSs that have been

(b) EFEME R RER 2FER

issued but are not yet effective — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 - Disclosure of accounting
policies

The amendments clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates. Among other things, the
amendments now define accounting estimates as
monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty, and
clarify that the effects of a change in an input
or a measurement technique used to develop an
accounting estimate are changes in accounting
estimates unless they result from the correction
of prior period errors.

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates
as “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
An accounting policy may require items in
financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the
accounting policy may require such items to be
measured at monetary amounts that cannot be
observed directly and must instead be estimated.
In such a case, an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or
assumptions based on the latest available, reliable
information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting

estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.
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DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") —
CONTINUED
(b) Amendments to HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24
of HKAS 12 so that it does not apply to such
transactions as leases and decommissioning
provisions that, on initial recognition, give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. Consequently, entities will need to
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising on these
transactions.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 -
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where
there is a sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction with an associate or joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, any gains or losses resulting from the
loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business are recognised in the profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors'
interests in that associate or joint venture.
Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the
remeasurement of retained interest in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") -
CONTINUED

(b) Amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective — Continued

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in
a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments add subsequent measurement
requirements for sale and leaseback transactions
that satisfy the requirements of HKFRS 15 to be
accounted for as a sale. The amendments require
a seller-lessee to determine “lease payments”
or “revised lease payments” such that the
seller-lessee would not recognize a gain or loss
that relates to the right of use retained by the
seller-lessee. The amendments also clarify that
applying the requirements does not prevent the
seller-lessee from recognising in profit or loss any
gain or loss relating to subsequent partial or full
termination of a lease.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “HKFRSs"”) issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rule”).
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M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION - CONTINUED

(b) Basis of measurement

(c)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for certain leasehold land and buildings, equity
instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and investment
property, which are measured at fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). Each entity in the
Group maintains its books and records in its own
functional currency. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$. The board of
directors considered that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in
HK$ as the shares of the Company are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4, FERHBE &

CONTINUED

(a) Business combination and basis of
consolidation — Continued

(a) XK AHREAER 8-

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.
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DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation — Continued

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and the
non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest; and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

e it is technically feasible to develop the
product for it to be sold;

e adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

e there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

e the Group is able to sell the product;

e sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and

e expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from
selling the products developed. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in cost of sales.

Development expenditure not satisfying the
above criteria and expenditure on the research
phase of internal projects are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.
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M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
(d) Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being
the excess of the aggregate of consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests over the fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the
fair value of consideration paid, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units
(“CGUs") that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in
profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &

CONTINUED
(e) Property, plant and equipment

(e) M% - - BMERRME

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are
initially recognised at cost. As well as the
purchase price, cost includes directly attributable
costs and the estimated present value of any
future unavoidable costs of dismantling and
removing items. The corresponding liability is
recognised within provisions.

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong
and buildings in the PRC and Vietnam are
subsequently stated at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading
of property revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that any decrease in value in excess of
the credit balance on the revaluation reserve, or
reversal of such a transaction, is recognised in
profit or loss. Upon disposal, the relevant portion
of the revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is released from the property
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Other property, plant and equipment are
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(e) Property, plant and equipment — Continued

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their carrying value net of
expected residual value over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. The annual depreciation
rates are as follows:

Leasehold land and 4% to 4.5% or over the
buildings lease terms, whichever
is shorter

Interests in leasehold Over the lease terms
land

Machinery and 15% to 30%
equipment

Furniture and fixtures  15%

Motor vehicles 18% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are revised
annually.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction as well as borrowing costs
capitalised during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred
to the appropriate class of property, plant and
equipment when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(f)

(9)

Investment property

Investment property is property held or right to
use asset held by the Group as a lessee either
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at fair value with
any change therein recognised in profit or loss.

Rent receivable is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease. Where an
incentive (such as a rent free period) is given to
a tenant, the carrying value of the investment
property excludes any amount reported as a
separate asset as a result of recognising rental
income on this basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
goods or service may be transferred over time
or at a point in time. Control of the goods or
service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(g) Revenue recognition - Continued

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control
of the goods or service.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing
and trading electronic components in both
Hong Kong and oversea markets. Customers
obtain control of the Group’s products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted
by customers. Revenue from sale of goods is
recognised at the point in time when control
of the assets is transferred to the customers
according to the terms of contracts. Revenue is
thus recognised when the products are delivered
and accepted by customers and invoice is issued
when the customers accepted the products. There
is generally only one performance obligation and
the consideration includes no variable amount.
Invoices are usually payable ranging from 30 days
to 90 days.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
(g) Revenue recognition — Continued
Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when those costs
meet all of the following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources
of the entity that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the cost relate.
The asset is subject to impairment review.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(h) Government grant

()

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets (including property, plant
and equipment) are recognised as deferred
income in the statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable and are
recognised as other revenue, rather than reducing
the related expense.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases; and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4, FERHBE &

CONTINUED

(i) Leasing - Continued

() HE-#

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the
right-of-use asset at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
For right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, they are carried at fair
value and for right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of a leasehold land and buildings held
for own use, they are carried at fair value.
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2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(i) Leasing — Continued

Right-of-use asset — Continued

The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings that are held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value. The Group accounts for
leasehold land and buildings which is held for
own use under HKAS 16 and are carried at fair
value. Other than the above right-of-use assets,
the Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises it judgment and determines that it is a
separate class of asset apart from the leasehold
land and buildings which is held for own use. As
a result, the right-of-use assets arising from the
properties under tenancy agreements are carried
at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable;
(ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease. Lease payments to be made
under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the lease
liability.
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31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4, FERHBE &
CONTINUED

(i) Leasing - Continued

() HE-#

Lease liability — Continued

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g.,
a change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property
to a tenant. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on the straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

CONTINUED

(j) Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

4., FEERIBE -
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A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs
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that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group
classifies its debt instruments including
trade and other receivables, amounts due
from ultimate holding company and related
companies, at amortised cost as follows:

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &

CONTINUED
(j) Financial instruments — Continued

() eMIA-&
EHEE &

(i) Financial assets - Continued ()

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
rate method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
not designated as effective hedging
instruments and financial assets was include
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified
at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated
at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

CONTINUED
(j) Financial instruments - Continued

(i) Financial assets — Continued

4., FEERIBE -

() eMIE-&

(1)

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading and
not contingent consideration required by
an acquirer in a business combination, the
Company could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit
or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair
value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4, FERHBE &

CONTINUED
(j) Financial instruments — Continued

() eMIE-&
(i) ZFEEREERE

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade
receivables.

The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECL: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECL: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has measured loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECL. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(j) Financial instruments - Continued

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets -

Continued

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) the financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 §4$R

4., FEERIBE -

() eMIE-&
(i) ZFEEHRERER &

REEEREEFERRE
BB AL HER R KRB
nEAEFEREESRE
FEBERRTEREARE
HWATR T ZEHEBE TSR
BETUEER  BERER
SEEBEERRCEHAEEN
HEHNEERELER D
o AR ATREMEE R

AEBEBRR fM—HTRE
ERHEB30H HEE
FEBRE KIEEM - BRIFAE
BEEESERAXEENE
BRSE SF A0 L

REBERTHERT £ @
EERAGERRBE: NER
ARAREAEEHMER
ER(UER)SETREER
BHBEATRAREEEHX
NEEEZEH Q%R
EEBHEIBE0R - BRIEX
EEAEERERAUXSESR
EFRERNFPEREESHE -



e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(j) Financial instruments — Continued

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

(v)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. The Group classifies
its financial liabilities at amortised cost which
are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(j) Financial instruments - Continued

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expired or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered and
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

e property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets (other than property
carried at revalued amounts); and

e investments in subsidiaries (recognised in the
Company’s statement of financial position
(see note 30)).

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets -

V)

(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.

Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.

(ii) Long service payments
The Group’s net obligations in respect of
long service payments are the amounts of
future benefits that employees have earned
in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 $R

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

4, FESHHE-&
(k) kFEMEENRE-&

REZEBBHREBER  BEEMN
REEASELKEHNEENTW
E&£fE HAASHWEREAETS
SRR EEERAFTEMEE
R REEEEENEREE B
BYRESENEERABBA -
RIEEBNEENREBYBRSE
ZAldp s BAFEVEER ELIE
AT REZBEBMEHREENZ
THEMBEEMERE -

H EEEF
() EFERFEUETE
ERHFRAENERE
BEREBRBENIBHE DHE
AR e

(i) RAIREZ
REBRBEREAEEHR
BENEBMUA R EB
HEBmMESKEREINNHD
HR2FEE-

(iii) #& 1L 92 18 75 71
RIEERBEANENREBAEE
IE =X 1M 5 4l 49 51 81 & A 77 88
WO ENERT  BHHER
RAR LB R (R AT B FEEE
BEEMRERENE 5T
R o

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EERHIZERER DA

120



121

M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(m) Inventories

(n)

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, which will probably result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &

CONTINUED

(o) Income taxes

(o) FR1&®L

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 Investment Property. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.
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M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(o)

(p)

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

Income taxes - (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income in which case the
taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &

CONTINUED

(p) Foreign currency - (Continued)

(p) SMB -]

On consolidation, income and expense items
of foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss
of Group entities' separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group's net investment in the
foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised in
the exchange reserve relating to that operation
up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1
January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange reserve.
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M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022%12A31H

31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(g) Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group;
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e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. EEREBK—I®
CONTINUED
(q) Related parties (q) BEBEALT &
(b) - Continued (b)—%&

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly (vi) ZBEE = (a)3h T Al By
controlled by a person identified in (a); A 32 2R A &
or =

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has (i) R@U) B HERE
significant influence over the entity BAFENAL IR
or is a member of key management ER(REENWI LT
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of SREEAS
the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group Vii)ZER IEANEEZ
of which it is a part, provides key HE RESHREEA
management personnel services to the EREFEERS TEE
group or to the group’s parent. ZBRTE] e

Close members of the family of a person are E—_AIHNEBRIBEREIETES
those family members who may be expected to AEEZATHERETESS
influence, or be influenced by, that person in REEESZALTEZENEBRR
their dealings with the entity and include: BREXEIE :

(i) that person’s children and spouse or () ZBATHNFLZREBERE

domestic partner; RER M

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) ZBATHEESRRESF
partner; and NWFL; &
(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s (i) ZBAATHZBATHER

spouse or domestic partner. REEBHNZEA °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

5.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies
(i) Current taxation and deferred taxation

Judgment is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the
timing of payment of the related taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business.
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — CONTINUED

(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies — (Continued)

(ii) Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency
transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional
currencies of the group entities, judgment
is required to determine the currency that
mainly influences sales prices for goods
and services and of the country whose
competitive forces and regulations mainly
determines the sales prices of its goods
and services. The functional currencies of
the group entities are determined based on
management’s assessment of the economic
environment in which the entities operate
and the entities’ process of determining sales
prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EERHYIERR A5 AHBAE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EMEERE-E

UNCERTAINTY — CONTINUED

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within next
financial year are as follows:

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines
the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the deprecation
charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write
off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

(ii) Impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value-in-use
of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value-in-use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — CONTINUED

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty —
(Continued)

(iii) Estimated net realisable value of
inventories

The Group’s management writes down for
slow moving or obsolete inventories based
on an assessment of the net realisable
value of the inventories. Inventory will be
written down where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable
value is less than cost. The determination
of net realisable value requires the use
of judgment and estimates in inventory
provision policy. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact carrying value of the
inventories and revision on the amount of
inventories written down in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.
In making this estimation, the Group
evaluates the usage and extent by all means
to which the amount will be recovered.
During the year, certain inventories
written down in prior years have been
used and sold. The Group recognised the
write-down of inventory of approximately
HK$954,000 (2021: reversal of write-down
of HK$4,795,000) for the year.
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20224 12A31H
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty — (b)) EREHEELETFREEH 22X

Continued ERE &

(iv) Fair value measurement (iv) X FEFE

5. ERRHFIERMAEHFHBAE
RHEREKE-&

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

A number of assets and liabilities included
in the Group's financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair
value. The fair value measurement of the
Group’s financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based
on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the ‘fair
value hierarchy’):

e level 1: Quoted prices in active markets
for identical items (unadjusted);

e Level 2: Observable direct or indirect
inputs other than Level 1 inputs;

e level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not
derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the above
levels is based on the lowest level of the
inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — CONTINUED

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty —
Continued

(iv) Fair value measurement — Continued

(v)

The Group measures a number of items at
fair value:

Revalued land and buildings — Property,
plant and equipment (note 14); and

e Investment property (note 15);

e Equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (note 16(a)); and

e Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 16(b)).

For more detailed information in relation
to the fair value measurement of the items
above, please refer to the applicable notes.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group recognised an ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix. The
Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment. If the financial
condition of the debtor were to deteriorate,
actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated. Details of movements in provision
for impairment of trade receivables are
disclosed in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

6.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing
and trading electronic components in both Hong Kong
and overseas markets. The Group's chief operating
decision-maker regularly reviews the consolidated
financial information of the Group as a whole to
assess the performance and consider there is only one
operating segment for the Group.

(a) Geographical information

The following table sets out the information
about the geographical location of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current
assets other than financial instruments
(“Specified non-current assets”).

The Group comprises the following main
geographical segments:

7 #8EFH
EENEBEEERREATHHRR
EREMEENERERTERBAW
RBREFEREE D BHERE

AEEBFEEEBRBITERER
EREEEf Mt -AEETELE
REECHENEREES —BOR
SMBER  UFERBARELHER
DERR  URBAEEES —EL

PEWaNgyi
=)

(a) HEER
TREHNEEAEBRBEIIDBE
FHEWFS o hIBANE 2 &R
BRemIAENINERBEE (1B
EERBEE] °

AEBEZIEHRBSIERMT ¢

Revenue from

contracts with
external customers
(by customers’ location)

Specified
non-current assets
(by assets’ location)

HINEE EEFRBEE

(BREEFNE) (RIBEEENE)
2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20218 20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET FHET THET

Hong Kong (place of BB (EEEEWRE

domicile) 217 i 2h) 522 849 340,356 322,421
The PRC A 16,176 17,585 222,682 248,018
The US =EE 230,248 210,198 11,771 11,765
Vietnam fAE) - = 58,449 55,359
European Union B Bk B2 4,778 4,855 - =
Other countries HME =R 10,700 10,114 - =
261,902 242,752 292,902 315,142
Total 4 28 262,424 243,601 633,258 637,563
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION — CONTINUED
(b) Disaggregated revenue information

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated
by major products and timing of revenue

20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

6. FEEH W\
(b) B BHERKFZES

TRHP  WAREZEZEERNBA

HRESE D E -

recognition.
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$'000 HK$000
FERT FHET
Major products FEEMm
Electronic components g7 H 262,424 243,601
Timing of revenue recognition W A i 52 B
At a point in time B [ 2 262,424 243,601

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by geographical markets is disclosed in
note 6(a) above.

The following table provides information about
trade receivables from contracts with customers:

L 5IFEE6(a) I B4 B 1R it 32 B
MO ENEFEHNWA -

T&RP RHEERBEFEHN
BB BR TR E HY

2022 2021
2022%F 20215
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET

Trade receivables from sale of HIEEEFTHELE
electronic components 9 FE U BR 7K 33,769 29,904
Under HKFRS 15, advance receipts from customers BIETBMEREERFE 155 -

in respect of the Group’s sale contracts included
in trade and other payables shall be reclassified
to contract liabilities. The Group considers the
amount of advance receipts from customers
is immaterial to the financial statements and
therefore the amount is not separately disclosed
as contract liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED

(c) Information about major customers
Revenue from contract with external customers of
the corresponding years contributing over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

6. FEEH

— iR
() FEXEEFER

RIEEFE RENMFEEZE
B EAREB 2B —KEF
BESEEF 2R ABER
10% » SBWT -

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Customer A EFH 58,301 56,184
Customer B E2EZ 54,538 45,258
Customer C Z2FERA 42,029 39,682
154,868 141,124
7. OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 7. Hfuig A
2022 2021
2022 202145
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bank interest income IRATRE WA 1,234 1,055
Changes in expected credit loss EURREZEREERE
on trade receivables 22 E (173) 255
Changes in expected credit loss HihERRIEZREE
on other receivables g 2 &8 - 2,381
Fair value change of financial assets UATFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREECATEEZE 114 -
Rental income under operating lease EEHETZ2HEWA 1,969 1,176
Exchange gain, net fEH WS FEE 1,857 181
Government grants (note) BUR 1 B (BT ) 2,546 70
Dividend income arising from equity REUAFEFTAEAM
instruments designated at fair value PHRBRBEZBRATER
through other comprehensive income Z R E WA 256 -
Sundry income HAi g A 1,180 386
8,983 5,504

Note:

Included in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 was HK$2,004,000 (2021: Nil) of government grants
obtained from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”)
under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong
SAR Government supporting the payroll of the Group’s
employees. Under the ESS, the Group had to commit to
spend these grants on payroll expenses, and not reduce
employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified
period of time. The Group did not have other unfulfilled
obligations relating to this program.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

wsz -

HE2022F 128318 LEE  BEHER
ERABNTHERNASZEASEE T
SMEHNHRENERES THRMEE
(MRFZESTE ) A BUFEEN2,004,000
BT (2021F - 2B x) - RIERFHEFS
2 AEEMNERGEEEEHBSARE
X TAERSERHATESEETIA
BURADEBEEKFUT - KEBERBHE

sHEEREmMARBETHEMER -
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS - CONTINUED 7.

In addition, HK$68,000 (2021: HK$70,000) of
government grants relating to subsidy for the
purpose of giving cash incentives for entity to recruit
employees with disability. The scheme is launched
by the government of the PRC. The amount granted
is depends on the ratio of employees with disability
recruited. The Group does not have other unfulfilled
obligations relating to this program.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8.

Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

Hthdg A — 8

b EEEBZEMAERARER
ERHRSEB 2 HE £ %5 A68,000
BT (20214 : 70,0008 7T) ° &Z&t 3
HPBEBAEE SEBNEEIURRA
EANERESNLS - XEBRE
BT EIEEMAREITHHMER -

R #2 AU & 71
BRBAEMENBR S GIA) :

charging/(crediting):

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEZREE 180,797 162,987
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of FEMRER, (&) 954 (4,795)
inventories
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRARINFEERK 181,751 158,192
Auditor's remuneration RE M€ 870 830
Depreciation charge of: WERX:
— owned property, plant and equipment -BEW%E BEKRZE 4,066 6,516
- right-of-use assets included within -ERAEEE  BER
— ownership interests in leasehold land - ROFEIRSEE
and buildings held for own use BAZHEELHR
carried at fair value MEZ FRE kR 7,798 4,840
— ownership interests in leasehold land —REARFIRSEER
held for own use carried at cost AzBELib 2z
BERR 743 757
— other properties leased for own use —REASIEREME A
carried at cost ZHEME 594 529
Changes in expected credit loss on trade BUHREBEzEBEEESSE
receivables ZEE 173 (255)
Changes in expected credit loss on other HittERRB2BHEE
receivables BEZEZE - (2,381)
Research and development expenditure MAREBER 5,092 4,818
Direct operating expense arising from REEREEHESBA
investment property that generated rental MIREMEEREERS
income during the year 99 444
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

9. STAFF COSTS 9. REIR®E
2022 2021
20224 20215
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHB T
Staff costs BT A
(including directors’ remuneration (BREEEME 2R
as set out in note 13) comprise: Miak13) B4 -
Wages and salaries TERFS 108,573 102,915
Contributions to defined contribution TE M FOR IRET B 2 X
retirement plan 8,465 7,422
117,038 110,337

The staff costs included an amount of HK$4,493,000
(2021: HK$4,389,000) which is classified as research

10.

B I B A8 ¥E4,493,0005% Tt (2021
£ 4,389,000 Jt) B AT KB

and development expenditure. BgH-
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. R H
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax B EA B I8 — & B 15 B
— Provision for the year - KREERE 873 1,139
— Over provision in respect of prior years —BFFEREZIR (343) (111)
530 1,028
Current tax — overseas BY A 18 — | Hb
— Provision for the year - AREERE 954 2,853
— Under provision in respect - BEFERELR
of prior years 98 142
1,052 2,995
Deferred tax credit (note 24) EEBIEIE % (MEE24) (1,280) (977)
302 3,046

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE — CONTINUED

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong, except for the first
HK$2,000,000 of qualified entity’s assessable profit is
calculated at 8.25%, which is in accordance with the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime.

The PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% (2021: 25%).

The US subsidiaries are subject to US Federal
Corporate Income Tax at 21% (2021: 21%).

The Vietnam subsidiary is subject to Vietnam
Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2021: 20%). No
provision for Vietnam Corporate Income Tax has been
made as the Vietnam subsidiary has no assessable
profits for the years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before income tax expense per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:
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10. AR R — &

RRFSHMAENEE  5EKE
B2V E2,000,00078 Jt FERR B i A AG 12
8.25%HH I BEERBH R 5T
R R A IR E16.5% & (2021
£ :16.5%) o

EHREA 2B L EBNIE25%
(20214 : 25%) B RFFTE 2P E A
EFEH -

MREBZ2HEBE LA BEHBMNIR21%
(2021%F : 21%) B RFTE 2 ZEH#FB
EFEH -

MRz B A RFEHMMN20% (202145 :
20%) W R EEREH - HRMRZ
Bt B8 2 =) 7E W Il B 3R R 0% B B R L
FE - HEEARFTIREE AR AESHRG
B o

NHt R ERREE 2 HENRER
AEREECRITHERAEH -

FERSHAXERBRERERE
e 2 ERER ZBRBANER, (BE)
HIRMT :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE — CONTINUED

10. AR — &

2022 2021
20225 202145
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHERT

Profit before income tax expense BR % Al V2 A 28,177 6,872
Effect of tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ &R&EBFIE

rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 8 ZJ‘FEIEEVE

(20214 : 4,649 1,134

Effect of election of the two-tier BIERS ?RW%&%'JZ%%

profits tax rates (165) -
Effect of different tax rates of WEBARIREMBEEER

subsidiaries operating in other REZTEBE2EE

jurisdictions (610) 37
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax BERFWA 2R B E

purposes (1,602) (1,475)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  REWRE 2 IBEEE 3,766 2,784
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FERAURIZERRAZ

recognised HIEEE (539) (117)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FAIRBEZ 2 HIERE

for tax purposes (4,952) 652
(Over)/under provision in respect of BEFERB(ZR) T2

prior years (245) 31
Income tax expense Frig®i % H 302 3,046

In addition to the amount charged to the profit or

BRTYHRRIEENEHEIN  FEEAR

EFERzHEEL AT 2 EhEEH

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#

loss, deferred tax relating to the revaluation of the
Group's certain leasehold land and buildings for
own use during the year has been charged to other
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$11,667,000
(2021: HK$24,987,000) which were available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the estimated tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The amount of tax losses of approximately
HK$Nil (2021: HK$5,295,000) have no expiry date and
HK$11,667,000 (2021: HK$19,692,000) are subject to
expiry period of five years.

REZERE  ERAFEARECAEM

154 W28 AR o

A2022F 128318 » AEB X
BREREEIENA11,667,000/8 T
(20214 : 24,987,000 Tt) » E 7

1 Tﬁﬁéiﬁﬂi/ﬁﬂ ° EHTJ-A*EE%U/H/)IL

Al FEE M B R BB EETHELIE
EERATMELHEEE - HEE
BHAZEB T (20214 : 5,295,00058
JU) BEHR - mM#11,667,00058 T
(20214 : 19,692,000 7T) W EAMR &

5% o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

11. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income:

M AEMSEES
Hitt2EW A ARBH 2 BUapE

2022 2021
20226 20215
Increase in Increase in
Before-  deferred Net-of- Before- deferred Net-of-
tax tax tax tax tax tax
amount liabilities amount amount liabilities amount
ELHE EEHE
BREAEE AEEM  HETE | RHAHE 8EEN  HEFE
(note 24) (note 24)
(Mi&E24) (FtzE24)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Exchange differences BAEBBEREEL
on translating foreign ERER
operations (21,114) - (21,114) 5,819 - 5,819
(Deficity/surplus on revaluation ~ EftEEFEERZEE
of leasehold land and THREAETL
buildings held for own use (Bia) /Bt (19,512) 3208 (16268)| 11567 (2,212) 9,355
Changes in fair value of equity ~ AAFEFAEMZE
instruments designated at hEzREATIAZ
fair value through other NYEED
comprehensive income 120 - 120 - - -
Impairment loss of leasehold REt2EKEREZE
land and buildings held for BeHETHRER
own use recognised in the BF2HERE
other comprehensive income (16,534) 4,406 (12,128) - - -
(57,040) 7,654 (49,386) 17,386 (2,212) 15,174
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the following data:

12. 81827

BREARFNTDZETIHIETE

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERx FET
Profit attributable to RABHEE AEMLEF

owners of the Company 27,875 3,826

Number of shares

%12 & B

2022 2021
2022%F 20215
Number of ordinary shares in issue ERTEEKREE 320,000,000 | 320,000,000

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive
ordinary shares outstanding for both years.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

FH A 1E 78 ] BE 3R 3 A I A7 T A

EgETE

NERRBRELXRF -
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e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 13.EFEMER-EEFALTRS
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ HREHEEBHME
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS’
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out (a) EEMNMMEFBRYFWT :
below:
Year ended 31 December 2022
8220225128318
Basic Contributions
salaries, to defined
allowance  contribution
and other retirement
Fees benefits plan Total
EXx%Fe - EHEBEX
ERR RNGHE
e Hitt @A AT Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Executive directors HTES
Siu Paul Y. (Chairman) ARE(XF) - 7,690 - 7,690
Shui Wai Mei #hEX - 650 - 650
Siu Ronald #FHR - 320 8 328
Sheung Shing Fai AR - 1,650 - 1,650
Siu Nina Margaret RED - 1,567 18 1,585
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Chung Pui Lam T A 125 - - 125
Lee Kit Wah T 125 - - 125
Wong Wah Sang, Derek BEL 80 - - 80
330 11,877 26 12,233
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND B.EEMERSEEFALIRS
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ REEEBME &
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS’
EMOLUMENTS - CONTINUED

(a) Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out Q) EENMESEBEERIFM
below: - (Continued) T: —#&

Year ended 31 December 2021

BZE20215128318
Basic  Contributions
salaries, to defined
allowance contribution
and other retirement
Fees benefits plan Total
EXgé - TR
EER RIRGHE
ik Hit g7 ZHR CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TAER TER
Executive directors HTES
Siu Paul Y. (Chairman) wRE(XF) - 7,690 - 7,690
Shui Wai Mei #hEX - 650 - 650
Sheung Shing Fai R e - 1,650 = 1,650
Siu Nina Margaret RED - 1,540 18 1,558
Independent BIUHTES
non-executive directors
Chung Pui Lam MM 125 - - 125
Lee Kit Wah P 125 - - 125
Wong Wah Sang, Derek HEL 80 - - 80
330 11,530 18 11,878
No directors waived any remuneration during the RAEFEER WEEMESKE
year. No incentive payment or compensation for HEBEREEAHE - BE2022
loss of office was paid or payable to any directors F1I2A3BLEFER  AEEL
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: EOEMES A E ARSIEK
Nil). EMAXREBESMATEBEH
S B R (20214 - BB IT) o
Basic salaries, allowance and other benefits HAR#FHE - 2N EMEFNE S
paid to or payable to the executive directors TREELZFFHTEE 25
are generally emoluments paid or payable in EEARABRNEMB L RANER
connection with the management of the affairs of M EF S -

the Company and its subsidiaries.
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e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

B.EEMERSBERTHFALIRS
REEEHNE &

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS’
EMOLUMENTS - CONTINUED

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments

(b) & = % B 85I A £

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, three (2021:
four) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures
in note 13(a) above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2021: one) individual were as
follows:

SEEReMEEEALTREREIR
ARANTEE (2021F 1 48) ' &
ANTEEWEC 5 AL EMKE
13(a) o HER2% (20215 1 18) &
BMEALTHMMESEEEHINNT :

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

TFET F#ET

Salaries and other benefits HeRkEMBER 1,474 845
Contributions to defined TE B i TR IR 5T &l 2 =X

contribution retirement plan 36 18

1,510 863

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the
five highest paid individuals (including directors
and other employees) as inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

The emoluments paid or payable to members
of senior management excluding directors were
within the following band:

EAFE  AREYEQEMSSE
R FERA LS EMTHMEE
BESIMARMARNEENRE
SRR E o

EXNEEEXNTEREER
RENME  HBESEN U T &
BEARAR:

Number of employees

ETHE
2022 2021
2022 20214
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 3 3
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.9%  BERKM

145

Ownership
interests in
leasehold ~ Ownership
land and interests in Other
buildings  leasehold  properties
held for ~ land held leased for
ownuse forownuse  own use Machinery ~ Furniture
carried at  carried at  carried at Construction and and Motor
fair value cost cost inprogress equipment  fixtures  vehicles Total
BOTES i
BRAEE BARIK
BeHREL HBEEER BREAIR
WRYEz ZBELH HEBRZ
FRELE 2FEEE HENE HEIE HEKRE GAREE hat: &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén Tin Tén TEn Tin Tén TAn
Cost or valuation AT EE
At 1 January 2021 R0211E1R1H 325,389 34,633 1,688 113,981 49,406 29,603 7,563 562,263
Additions E 1,570 - 931 43914 2,423 517 860 50,215
Disposals e - - - - (186) ) (968) (1,925)
Transfers &7 - - - (293) 293 = = =
Surplus on revaluation BftRe 4,379 - - - - - - 4379
Exchange adjustment Eia% 1,659 497 - 2,735 146 89 20 5,146
At 31 December 2021 and ~ B2021%12A318 R
1 January 2022 202251818 332,997 35,130 2,619 160,337 52,082 29,438 71475 620,078
Additions WE 11,764 - 735 - 4,846 3,330 - 20,675
Transfer HeE 139,039 = - (139,039) = = = =
Disposals 3 - - - - (607) (1,783) - (2,390)
Deficit on revaluation EftER (27,310) = = = = = - (21310
Exchange adjustment AR (5,536) (1,640) - (12,519) (541) (296) (67) (20599
At 31 December 2022 R2021%128318 450,954 33,490 3,354 8,779 55,780 30,689 7408 590,454
Accumulated depreciation Zif 7%
and accumulated loss
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 818 - 4,971 853 - 36,109 26,401 6,856 75,190
Charge for the year AEEHE 7,188 757 529 - 2,754 94 490 12,642
Disposals HE - - - - (186) () (969) (1,925)
Written back on revaluation B fk e & (7,188) - - - - - = (7,188)
Exchange adjustment ER@E - 109 - - 110 52 12 283
At 31 December 2021 and 20215128318 R
1 January 2022 202251818 - 5,837 1,382 - 38,787 26,606 6,390 79,002
Charge for the year KEERE 7,79 i 594 X 774 299 13,01
Disposals HeE - - - - (607) (1.725) - (2332
Reclassification ENnE - - - - (1.282) 1282 = =
Written back on revaluation Ef5% E& (7,799) = = = = = - (7.798)
Impairment loss recognised in - R £t 2 A& R
other comprehensive income  Z B B % 16,534 - - - - - - 16,534
Exchange adjustment ERAZ - (390) - - (361) 222) (46) (1,019)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318 16,534 6,190 1,976 - 39,530 26,715 6,643 97,588
Carrying amount BEFE
At 31 December 2022 R2022%128318 434,420 27,300 1,378 8,779 16,250 3,974 765 497 866
At 31 December 2021 R2021%128318 332,997 29,293 1,237 160,337 13,295 2,832 1,085 541,076

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 §4$R



e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 14.M% BERNKE—&

CONTINUED
Ownership
interests in
leasehold ~ Ownership
land and interests in Other
buildings  leasehold  properties
held for ~ land held leased for
ownuse  forown  ownuse Construction Machinery  Furniture
carried at  use carried  carried at in and and Motor
fair value at cost cost  progress equipment  fixtures  vehicles Total
BAYES
BREFE  BRAANE
RzBgr HEEER RALRIE
WRMEe ZBELH HitERZ
FREEE ZFEEE HENE KEIR HERRE GAREE RE fit
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn Tin TEn T Tin TEn T Tin
Representing; i:
2022 WNE
At cost S = 33,490 3,354 8779 55,780 30,689 7408 139,500
At valuation RiGE 434,420 = - - = - - 434420
434,420 33,490 3,354 8,779 55,780 30,689 7,408 573,920
2021 WNE
At cost BRHE - 35,130 2619 160337 52,082 29438 7475 287,081
At valuation fRfsE 332,997 - - - - - - 332997

332,997 35,130 2,6

9 160,337 52,082 29,438 1475 620,078

The leasehold land and buildings held by the Group
for own use located in Hong Kong and the PRC were
valued at 31 December 2022 by qualified valuers
from Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
chartered surveyors. The valuations were carried out
in accordance with guidance set by the HKIS Valuation
Standards (2020 Edition) published by The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

The buildings held by the Group for own use located
in Vietnam were valued at 31 December 2022 by
qualified valuers from Viet Nam Valuation and
Consulting Joint Stock Company, an independent
firm of chartered surveyors. The valuations were
carried out in accordance with guidance set by the
International Valuation Standards 2022 published by
the International Valuation Standards Council.

The revaluation surplus/(deficit) net of applicable

deferred income taxes was credited/(debited) to
property revaluation reserve.
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FEolEST °

AEEFEALNNBEEERZET
DHBIYIESEKMGEMViet Nam
Valuation and Consulting Joint Stock
Company » R20225F 12831 B #ET4
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Rl Z &8 iR E MR fhE X RI202210 18
S #EAT °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

CONTINUED

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer. There were no transfers between

Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings is a level
3 recurring fair value measurement using significant
unobservable inputs. A reconciliation of the opening
and closing fair value balance is provided below.

14.9%  BERXRE-—&

AEBNBRRENRERSHRER
ZHERZA BREAREBEHQY
BEERER -REER  LRBNE
B-%2BRFEIB2BHNER -

HELHREFHNAFEEREE M
AFEFEREREIEENENS
ASIREIE - MARBARNAFES
BRI A RBART I -

Leasehold
land and
buildings in Buildings Buildings
Hong Kong in the PRC  in Vietnam Total
NREEZ
HEL LR PE R
REF ZEF ZEF CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEn TERr TERr
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H 228,700 67,194 29,495 325,389
Additions nE - - 1,570 1,570
Depreciation charge on revaluation EfEEEEERZ

of properties held for own use MEZITE (3,242) (2,720) (1,226) (7,188)
Unrealised gains included in other BEREM2HEKE 2

comprehensive income REE W& 7,842 3,460 265 11,567
Exchange adjustment RS = 1,659 = 1,659
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F128318 &

1 January 2022 2022F1818 233,300 69,593 30,104 332,997
Additions NE - 148,392 2,411 150,803
Depreciation charge on revaluation EftEHEEBAZ

of properties held for own use MEZIE (3,356) (3,216) (1,226) (7,798)
Unrealised (losses)/gains included in BEREM2HEKE 2

other comprehensive income REH (BB WE (21,244) 1,620 112 (19,512)
Impairment loss EAEE=ES - (16,534) - (16,534)
Exchange adjustment B 5 - (5,536) - (5,536)
At 31 December 2022 20226128318 208,700 194,319 31,401 434,420

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

CONTINUED

For leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong,
the valuations were determined using market
comparison approach. The fair value of leasehold land
and buildings is based on prices for recent market
transactions in similar properties and adjusted to
reflect the conditions and locations of the Group’s
properties. The significant input into this valuation
approach is price per square feet, which has been
adjusted to reflect the time of transaction, location,
size, level and age of property, site view and building
quality.

For buildings in the PRC, the valuations were
determined using depreciated replacement cost
approach and market comparison approach. For
the depreciated replacement cost, the fair value of
buildings is based on estimation of new replacement
cost of the buildings and other site works of which
adjustments are then made to account for age,
condition, and functional obsolescence, while taking
into account the site formation cost and those public
utilities connection charges to the properties. These
adjustments are based on unobservable inputs. The
key inputs are estimated cost of construction per
square meter and age adjustment on the cost of
buildings. For the market comparison approach, the
fair value of leasehold land and buildings is based
on prices for recent market transactions in similar
properties and adjusted to reflect the conditions and
locations of the Group's properties. The significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square
feet, which has been adjusted to reflect the location,
size, level and age of property.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 $R

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

149K  BERXRE-—&

UREB2HETHRET  HER
AmSLEERE HELHRET
WAFEERBEMTERS PEMU
MENERILFEHAR  URRAEE
EHEFRENUE REZEAZX
HEFERUBFIRER  EPE
ABRROCRMRXZNEE LEUR
MEZHE BE B SENE

Sk EE =
HYEE o

URFEZBTF  HEKBEERAE
ERTSHEEERE REBEXAE
o BFNAFERRBEEZFHMGS
HHMEERAREMBTREFEL
fhet  WEEBE - RFREBEMER
B URBBYPERARABREE
BRERNMATHEERETNEE - &
LRABRERBEIEENERBA -
FERNERBARMLT ZBFH KN
BERREBRENBTFRANHE - 2
MSLLEBE  HELTHREFHLF
ERRBENTERZ DECYEN
BRIFHBRE  URRAEENY
ERANUE ZBEERAZMGES
ERUBFHRER  ERERARER
ERMUBUARYE 2EE - BEM
BHE -
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M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

CONTINUED

Impairment loss of leasehold land and buildings
held for own use

In January 2022, % (BR) EFAERIF("E
Z(EXR)") an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a Land Resumption
Agreement with Foshan Shunde District Land Reserve
Centre (“Land Reserve Centre”), pursuant to which
EE(BXR) has agreed to surrender a parcel of land
to Foshan Shunde District Land Reserve Centre,
at a consideration by way of cash compensation
of a certain percentage on the public auction
price less deductions, such as share of cost of sail
restoration to an extent that the land is appropriate
for redevelopment purpose. A factory building
(“Factory Building”) was built on this land. The Land
Resumption was not completed by 31 December 2022
and in the opinion of the Directors, the land and
factory building were not available for immediate sale
in its present condition as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, management of the Group
assessed the recoverable amount of the Factory
Building and considered that the fair value is minimal
in view of the upcoming redevelopment plan in the
District. As a result, the full carrying amount of the
Factory Building was impaired. An impairment loss
of RMB14,500,000 (equivalent to HK$16,534,000)
was recognised and the revaluation surplus previously
recognised in the other comprehensive income was
reduced accordingly.

14.9%  BERXRE-—&

BEFEEAzHEI R YEZ
WEEE

202218 AAREE2ENES
ARAIEEZE(BER)ETHERAR ([EEZE
(B®R)]) @ LTIEERE L it FEP
A ([ £ i 0 ) BT 37 £ b UK 31 175
o B BE(ER)ERAEDH
WmEEE L thEEROHE—BLT
i EELAMBEEEN —E LA
MRS @MERNE  HRMNKRE 6
METHEEBEHRZENNEERN
TEFERAKR - EERE LI EE EE
ME(THE]) o ik ER20225F12
A3EMARER  EBMREREE
2022F 128318 1 R E R IR R E
SEMBENHE o

M2022F 128318 - AEBEEEE
FEBRENTRE SR WRAER
ZENGETHERTE  HAFE
BERM Bt HRENLREEE
THRE-EEIABEEBEBAARY
14,500,0007T (625 7416,534,0007%
L) WHRHEMEEKERERNER.
BEREHBERE 2R °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

CONTINUED

Impairment loss of leasehold land and buildings
held for own use - Continued

For buildings in Vietnam, the valuation was
determined using depreciated replacement cost
approach and market comparison approach. For
the depreciated replacement cost, the fair value of
buildings is based on estimation of new replacement
cost of the buildings and other site works of which
adjustments are then made to account for age,
condition, and functional obsolescence, while taking
into account the site formation cost and those public
utilities connection charges to the properties. These
adjustments are based on unobservable inputs. The
key inputs are estimated cost of construction per
square meter and age adjustment on the cost of
buildings. For the market comparison approach, the
fair value of leasehold land and buildings is based
on prices for recent market transactions in similar
properties and adjusted to reflect the conditions and
locations of the Group's properties. The significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square
feet, which has been adjusted to reflect the location,
size and level of property.

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is provided
below.
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2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

149K  BERXRE-—&

RFFERcEELTHRYEZ
AR R —

URBEZET  HERXRAEERE
ERTMSHLEERE REBEHRSE
o BFHAFERRBEBZFHMGET
HMMEERARAMBRETRAEDY
st WEBBE - RERBEBEMERR
B URMBPERARNAREE
BRERNMGTHEERANEAE - &
LHAEEERELIBENENAA -
BARENERB ARG Z2E8FH KN
BERREBRENEBFRANHE - &
MSLLEBE  HELTHREFHLQF
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BERLEELEFAE  URRAEEHY
ERANMUE SBRERAZMGES
ERUABSFHRER  BERERFHBER
ERMRUBURE ZEHE B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 14.9% BER®H—&

CONTINUED
Range of
unobservable Relationship of
Fair value at  Valuation Significant inputs (probability- unobservable
Description 31 December 2022 technique (s) unobservable inputs weighted average) inputs to fair value
EXBEBEN
20225128318 EAREBREN ERBANEE ELBEREAAN
i3 ZAVE fhERE EREA (BEmETY) ATEBHE
Leasehold land and HK$208,700,000  Market comparison  Age of property factor (2.2)%-(1.4)% Lower age, higher quality
buildings in (2021: HK$233,300,000)  approach (2021: (2.8%)-1.4%)  and transaction dates
Hong Kong 208,700,000 WHLEE (2.2)%-1.4)%  close to valuation
fiREEcHEL S (2021% : BRRZ (2021 date will resultin
REF 233,300,000 ) (2.8)%-1.4%)  correspondingly higher
fair value
Quality factor 0% (2021: 0%) BfEMEEH BRENEE
EERZ 0% (20215 :0%)  REELMEERRNL
ZREEEHRERS
Time of transaction factor (49%-6.3)% WAFE-
(2021: 0%-1.3%)
(4.9)%-(6.3)%
RARERE (2021% : 0%-13%)
Buildings in the PRC HK$11,295,000  Depreciated Age adjustment on the cost 76% (2021: 77%)  Lower age of buildings
URMEET (2021: HK$30,087,000)  replacement cost of buildings, taking into will result in
11,295,00087  approach account the remaining correspondingly higher
QU1E: EERNE useful life of buildings fair value
30,087,000% 7t) BEHNEZARNAE  76% (021%F 1 77%) BENEREEHAHE
REBEFZHTH BNATE.
RREH
Buildings in the PRC HK$39,506,000  Market comparison  Floor adjustment factor 54% (2021: 54%)  Lower floor will result in
URFEZET (2021" HK$39,506,000)  approach BERAERZ 54% (2021% : 54%)  higher fair value
39,506,0008 %  WHLEAE RERERSHREN
(2021 : AYE
39,506,000/ 7t)
Buildings in the HK$30,121,531  Depreciated Age adjustment on the cost 86%-97%  Lower age of buildings
Vietnam (2021: HK$28,793,000) replacement cost of buildings, taking into (2021: 93%-99%)  will result in
iRz eF 301215318 approach account the remaining correspondingly higher
QuE: EERNE useful life of buildings fair value
28,793,000% 77) BRUNETRANAZ 86%-97% BENEERLSHEHR
RERBTZHTH (2021 :93%-99%) BHATFE-
RREH

HK$1,280,276
(2021: HK$1,311,000)
1,280,276/ 7
Q021F :
1,311,000/ 70)

Buildings in the
Vietnam

frhiE 28T

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

90%-100%

(2021: 90%-100%)
90%-100%

(2021 : 90%-100%)

Marketing comparison Floor adjustment factor

approach
BB % BERZRZ
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

CONTINUED

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

The fair value measurements are based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ
from their actual use.

Had the Group’s leasehold land and buildings been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the
carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings as at 31 December 2022 would
have been approximately HK$58,832,000 (2021:
HK$77,457,000).

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

149K  HERXRE-&

REERNRBERBMEENTE -

RFEFERERNLAYENRSR
RIECEH  REBERARETE -

HMAEB2HEL HREBFIRAK
BREFNEFNE  AAEEHEL
R FR2022F12831H Z28RE
8 FE 9 £58,832,0005% 7T (20214 :
77,457,000/ J5) ©

EREEE
REEENERAREEREES N
m

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHExT
Ownership interests in leasehold land RAFEIERFEEEBRAZ
and buildings, carried at fair value, HELHWRMEZRERE
with remaining lease terms of: o BRTHESRS
— Between 10 and 50 years — 105 2505 39,023 40,817
— Over 50 years —50F L E 208,700 233,300
247,723 274,117
Ownership interests in leasehold land,  RITEXAFIRITEEE B
carried at depreciated cost, with ZHEL M o FIERERER
remaining lease terms of between BRTHEHB10FEE505F
10 and 50 years 27,302 29,293
Other properties leased for own use, RITERASIREME B
carried at depreciated cost ZHHEYE 1,378 1,237
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15.1 M=
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THExT
Fair value NFEE
At 1 January MH1B1H 84,200 82,000
Change in fair value NS e 29,500 2,200
At 31 December M12831H 113,700 84,200

The investment property of the Group is held under
long-term leases in Hong Kong.

There was no deferred tax for the fair value change of
investment property located in Hong Kong as capital
gain tax on sale of the investment property is not
applicable in Hong Kong and the deferred tax for the
fair value change of investment property is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 4(0).

The investment property held by the Group was
valued by qualified valuers from Asset Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of chartered surveyors.
The valuation was carried out in accordance with
guidance set by the HKIS Valuation Standards (2020
Edition) published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer. There were no transfers between
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The valuation was determined using a market
comparison approach. The fair value is based on
the prices for recent market transactions in similar
properties and adjusted to reflect the condition and
location of the Group's investment property. The
significant input of this valuation approach is price per
square feet, which has been adjusted to reflect the
time of transaction, location, size, level and age of the
property, site view and building quality.

AEEZREMEURPANES -

HAHELREBNRENENESR
WEBRTBERARNE B - WL B LR
EENRENENAFEEDELE
ERIE  MREVENQIFELZFE
FERIH BZ B 40T BB ST R R
o

FEEBACRENEDHBYAE
REEMPAZEETEEBRERA
BEITE - ZEEITEDRE RS
EERAEMBSHRNEBRSAME
Y EGERER2020M W IEEIELT ©

AEBNBRRRERERSHRER
ZHFERZA BREAREBHLQY
BEERER - NEER  WRANE1
B F2BRFIB2EMNER -

HERATSLEEEE Q2 FER
REBEOLHTERZ PEUNENER
WEHBRE URRAEENREY
ERANUE RBEZEBWAZMGES
ERUNBFHRER  ERERHER
ERMRREZNEE - VEURYEZ
HE -BE B& SBENEZENE

=
L=l ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY — CONTINUED 15. 8 BMER-&
Information about fair value measurement using ERFERERELEZRNERBH A (5
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is provided 3B) AFEFEERBERTX °
below.
Range of
unobservable Relationship of
Fair value at  Valuation Significant inputs (probability- unobservable
Description 31 December 2022 technique unobservable inputs weighted average) inputs to fair value
EXELBEN
20225124318 ERBANER EXBRGAN

it ZDVE fEERE EXAELERNENBA (BEMETY) ATEBHE
Investment property HK$113,700,000  Market comparison  Floor adjustment factor 0% Higher floor will result in
in Hong Kong (2021: HK$84,200,000)  approach (2021:1.5%-3.5%)  correspondingly higher
IREB 2 RENS 11370000087  WEHEE BERZRE 0% fair value.
(20215 : (20215 :1.5%-35%) HEHBEASHRLHR
84,200,000% 1t) BNAYE.
Location adjustment factor 0% (2021: 0%) Higher rate of location
WERZAR 0% (20214 : 0%)  adjustment will result in
correspondingly higher
fair value.
HENLERERRES
BHRHHENATE
There were no changes to the valuation methodology REERSEREELENSE -
during the year.
The fair value measurement is based on the above AFEFERENRLEYMENRS K
property’s highest and best use, which does not differ BRESR  REBEARIETRE -

from its actual use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Equity instruments designated at fair value

16. LAFHEARMZEIRZ
BEIR BHUAFEHARS
ZEMRE

(a) U FEFAHEMEZE K EHE

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

through other comprehensive income ZRRARTHE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET TF#ET

Listed securities in Hong Kong, REBLETESZ2AFE

at fair value 11,022 -
Listed securities overseas, at fair value REII EHHEH 2 A FE 5,723 =
16,745 -

These listed securities are shares in various
companies which are listed in Hong Kong or
overseas. The Group designated the investments
at FVOCI (non-recycling) as they are held for
long-term investment purpose. Dividends of
HK$256,000 were received on these investments
during the year (2021: HK$Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, net
fair value gain amounted to HK$120,000 (2021:
HK$Nil) was recognised in other comprehensive
income.

The fair values of listed equity investments are
based on quoted market prices.
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS — CONTINUED

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit

20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

16. MAFEHARMZEBRZ

BEIR BHUAFEHARE
ZEMBE-#

(b) UAFEFAERZEME

or loss =
2022 2021
20225 20215
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR F#ET
Unlisted unit funds, at fair value (EmEBENES2ATFE 7,904 =

The fair values of unlisted unit funds are based on
dealer quotations.

(c) Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group’s listed securities as
at year end are determined based on unadjusted
active market quotes available in the regular
equity markets.

The Group’s unit funds are not traded in

open market and the fair value of which are
determined based on dealer quotations.
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RZEMEMETHL

DFEER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL

ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS — CONTINUED

(c) Fair value hierarchy - Continued

16. LAFHEARMZEIRZ
BEIR BHUAFEHARS
ZEMBE-#

() XFEER-&

2022
2022F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 -y ey @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TER
Equity instruments designated W AFEAEMZE
at fair value through other KEzREAIR
comprehensive income
- Listed securities in -REBLTESZ
Hong Kong at fair value AVE 11,022 - - 11,022
— Listed securities overseas -RENETESZ
at fair value AYE 5,723 - - 5,723
16,745 - - 16,745
Financial assets at fair value UAFEFFABRZ
through profit or loss tREE
— Unlisted unit funds, at -kLmENESZ
fair value AYE - 7,904 - 7,904

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

BIE2022F12A31HIEFER >
BREREE—BNE_EBzEZ
EERAY tREEEWEADY
FAHE=ZE - AEEHNBERE
REMRBERAFESH BN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. GOODWILL

Gross and net carrying amount SREE
At 1 January and 31 December

M1A1ER12A31H

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

17.5 %

2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FB T
9,486 9,486

Impairment testing of CGU containing goodwiill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to the single CGU identified, the magnetic
components production.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined from value-in-use calculation based on
cash flow projections from formally approved budget
covering a five-year period. Cash flow beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 0% (2021: 0%),
which does not exceed the long-term growth rate for
the magnetic component production industry. The
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of
16% (2021: 18%). The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the CGU. The
growth rates within the five-year period ranged from
2% to 3% (2021: 2%).

Based on result of the impairment testing, no

impairment loss has been recognised since initial
recognition of goodwill.
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EREE TRAZE-RE4ER
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BeEEBENz2TRESERREE
N EBE-FH2HEMSEZR
SREFBBAAE - SFUINRS
o AERMEET IR ER0%
(20215 : 0%) 1FHE - MZETEGR
BHUMEREETENRERE -
BeRBFEANEERE16% (20214F :
18%) EITE - ERZINERABAR
RREARBE S ZENBENER - 5F
A2 BRERA2%-3% (20214 12%) °

ERBERAINGR BREIFE
WRERBEBERER
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

18. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 1. B ATIZER
The following list contains the particulars of all TRIFFEARAEFXE EERA
subsidiaries of the Group: BZIEMB LTSS
Issued and fully
Place of Place of paid share capital/
Name incorporation  operation Principal activities registered capital Percentage of ownership interests
‘ EGITH
1 AMHIBE FEFECHE TERE R&/ERER BEREEEAL
Directly Indirectly
E% 3
2022 2021 2022 2021
002F | 01F| 202fF| 2021%F
Guardsafe Technology ~ British Virgin Hong Kong Investment holding US$1,000 100% | 100% - -
Limited Islands & REER 1,000% 7
ARRAEE
Great Vigour Holdings ~ British Virgin Hong Kong Investment holding Us$1 100% | 100% - -
Limited Islands g4 RELER 1£7
ZBRLEE
Musthave Technology ~ British Virgin Hong Kong Investment holding Uss$1 - - 100% | 100%
Limited Islands Bl REER %7
ABRLES
Think Machine Technology British Virgin Hong Kong Investment holding Us$2 - - 100%| 100%
Limited Islands B REEZR EY T
ARRAEE
Century Electronics Hong Kong Hong Kong Trading of electronic HK$2 - -| 100%| 100%
Trading Limited R E# components 2B
BEETRH
Datatronic Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$10,000 ordinary - - 100% | 100%
&8 Bk manufacturing and trading of  HK$200,000
electronic components non-voting deferred ()
REER RER 10,0008 T EBR
BESTf 200,008 TER R
BELERH)
ER(ER)ET The PRC The PRC Manufacturing of electronic ~ US$8,665,000 - -l 100% | 100%
BRA () HE HE components 8,665,000
HEET Ik
Datatronic Distribution, ~ California, California, Trading of electronic US§1,000 - - 100%| 100%
Inc. the US the US components 1,000% 7
XENNE  XANNE  EEETak
EEM EEM
Champ Asset Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Property and investment HKS 1 - - 100% | 100%
e e holding 18T
RENXLRE
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18. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES -

CONTINUED
Place of
Name incorporation
£R A IBE
Maxgain Venture Limited ~ Hong Kong
gk
Datatronic Technology ~ Hong Kong
Limited &8
BENWERAR
Datatronic Excel Limited  Hong Kong
BEAWARLE BB
B (hil) R The PRC
B2 i) i
Pulse Tek Trading Limited  Hong Kong
g8

Innovative Power, Inc. California, the US

ZENNE
RN
Novotech Company Socialist Republic
Limited of Vietnam
i
Power Plus Innovation ~ Hong Kong
Limited (iv) £
ERENHARAFN
Nano & Mega Limited (iv)  Hong Kong

QEEERLA() Bk

20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

1. MMBARZER — &

Issued and fully

Place of paid share capital/
operation Principal activities registered capital Percentage of ownership interests
BERARAR
EBMEZHE TEER R&/ERER BRERZAEDY
Directly Indirectly
E% [}
2022 2021 2022 2021
Hong Kong Property holding HK$2 - - 100%| 100%
BE RENE 287
Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1 - - 100% | 100%
] REER 187
Hong Kong Investment holding and trading HKS$1 - - 100%| 100%
& of electronic components 17
REERREES Tkt
The PRC Manufacturing of electronic ~ US§$10,000,000 - - 100% | 100%
g components 10,000,000E 7t
HEETH
Hong Kong Trading of electronic HK$2 - - 100% | 100%
g components 2T
BEETRH
California, the US Manufacturing and trading of ~ US$1,000 - -{ 100%| 100%
ZEMAR electronic components 1,000% 7
EEN HEREES T H
Socialist Republic - Manufacturing of electronic ~ US$8,760,000 - - 100% | 100%
of Vietnam components 8,760,000% 7T
il HEETH
Hong Kong Investment holding HKS 1 - - 100% N/A
Bk REER 187
Hong Kong Investment holding HKS 1 - - 100% N/A
B REER by
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

18. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES -
CONTINUED

18. RB AT ZHES — &

0)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights
and are not entitled to any dividend on distribution
upon winding up unless a sum of HK$1,000,000,000
has been distributed to each holder of the ordinary
shares.

HiZ (B®R) ETHMRAT is a wholly foreign owned
enterprise established in the PRC for a term of 30 years
up to September 2023.

EiE (Pil) BHEBERAE is a wholly foreign owned
enterprise established in the PRC.

Power Plus Innovation Limited and Nano & Mega
Limited were incorporated on 11 October 2022 in Hong
Kong and principally engaged in investment holding.
Both companies were inactive during the year.

)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

ERERELERMILBIRZE > AE
BE N EEE S D R ME AR
B RISEZERBFTEALEES
JK1,000,000,00058 5 * BI4ERIH o

EE(BER)EFERATDD—XREH
BRIz EBEELE  £EHA30
. HE2023F98 ALk ©

BE (R BBRBRARATT—RES
B2 ERERE -

ERENEERATARMBZERA
AAR2022F10B 1M BREBRY - H
FEEBRBREER 2R QD ARA
FEHBTIER -

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

19. INVENTORIES 19.%8
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FiBT
Raw materials AR 64,472 65,298
Work-in-progress HER R 6,449 5,962
Finished goods SR 37,708 35,387
108,629 106,647

The Group's inventories with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$12,829,000 (2021:
HK$8,440,000) was stated at net realisable value.

FEEzBFETERFEIRAR

EE L 512,829,000/ 7t (2
8,440,000/ 7T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 §4$R
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31

20. FE U AR 3%

Customers are generally offered a credit period
ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior

management.

(@) An ageing analysis of trade receivables, based
on invoice dates, as at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

20229 12A31H
December 2022

rEB-RETEFPZEEHNF30
BEOHZME -AEESHEYEEZR

HA FE W BR R

B4 48 147 M W AR K o

(@) ®»
iR

I

+

=}
=h
FA

SEEEAEEEHE

E0 REBXZRHNENR
ik

FARE DATT ¢

2022 2021

2022%F 202145

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Within 30 days 30BA 15,034 17,425
31 to 60 days 31260H 9,728 6,611
61 to 90 days 61£90H 5,118 2,211
Over 90 days 90H KL k£ 4,720 4,315
34,600 30,562

Less: Loss allowances for impairment & : JB{EE B RE (831) (658)
33,769 29,904

(b) The movements in the loss allowances for

(b) BWHRREESERE 2230

impairment of trade receivables are as follows: T
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 January M1B1H 658 913
Expected credit loss EHEE2ET 173 (255)
At 31 December M12H831H 831 658

The Group recognised impairment loss based
on the accounting policy stated in note 4(j)(ii).
Further details of impairment analysis under
HKFRS 9 performed on the Group’s trade

receivables are set out in note 31().
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) ULTIMATE

HOLDING COMPANY AND RELATED
COMPANIES

Particulars of the amounts due from ultimate holding
company and related companies, disclosed are as

follows:

21. BBy (FEf) REERATR
R NE R

BURRAFARARBELRARBER

25T :

31 December

Maximum amount
outstanding
during the year

ended 31 December

FERA
M12831H RSRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20215 20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT TET THET
Ultimate holding RAEZERAR
company
Onboard Technology
Limited 112 112 122 112
Related companies FEE A A
Data Express Limited* 142 129 142 129
Citicheer Enterprise Inc* 144 128 144 128
286 257

The amounts due from/(to) ultimate holding company
and related companies are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

* Mr.

Siu Paul Y., a director of the Company, has

controlling interest in Data Express Limited and

Citicheer Enterprise Inc.

163
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W, ENEEERARREERH
ZHBERE RERARERE

= o

* EBRBEE(HRADNAZ—NNE
EMHEAREG ) #EBData Express
Limited & Citicheer Enterprise Inc.2Z

= 5 -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20224 12A31H

31 December 2022

22. FE f IR 3% B 3 i BB 4 B IR

2022 2021
20224 202145
HK$'000 HK$000
FHEx THET
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FE A3 BR K 8,618 11,170
Other payables and accruals HinENHRIERETEHR 10,604 12,921
Fee payables for construction of BRNEERENER
manufacturing plants 559 18,052
19,781 42,143
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Retention payable BNREE 3,608 4,510

An ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice

REERREZAPNESRAZER

dates, as at the end of the reporting period is as B AR
follows:

2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 30 days 308 A 3,916 4,523
31 to 60 days 31260H 3,022 3,681
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,046 1,570
Over 90 days 90H L k£ 634 1,396
8,618 11,170
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 23.ERi&E#F
Details of the employee benefits and movements ETRANREHUNT :
thereof:

Provision for long
service payments

RERKE2&BE
2022 2021
2022%F 202145
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year RARFEHY) 19,424 18,996
Exchange adjustments [ (1,169) 355
Add: Additional provision made n: e RREE 24 98
Less: Reversal of provision R e B - (25)
At the end of the year A E E R 18,279 19,424
Categorised as: DEMOT :
Due after more than one year ZR—FEZBNEH 18,279 19,424
The provision for long service payments of Hong EERATZEBRTEEERIR
Kong and the PRC employees is provided based on BREDREEEERREFE - 186
the actual number of years of services rendered by EOIRGERIZEREE - BEEHBRIR
the employees and the relevant laws and regulations. ZEEBEEES -

The provision will be settled at the time when the
respective employees left the Group.
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24. DEFERRED TAX

Details of the deferred tax liabilities and assets

recognised and movements thereof:

20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

24, B ER IR
ELBELSERBEZ2HEHNT :

Impairment loss

and revaluation Depreciation
of leasehold allowances
land and in excess of
buildings for the related
own use depreciation Tax losses Total
BRZ BBEE
RELHR hEz
: A WERHE HEABA by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr THr THR THR
At 1 January 2021 R2021%1818 38,084 1,779 (137) 39,726
(Credit)/debit to profit or loss (note 10) (st A) /HIBRE B (K&10) (1,460) 483 = (977)
Debit to other comprehensive income 1B} B H b2 m MW (HzE11)
(note 11) 2,212 - - 2,212
At 31 December 2021 and W2021E12B318 K
1 January 2022 2022%181H 38,836 2,262 (137) 40,961
Credit to profit or loss (note 10) STABBH (MzE10) (1,026) (254) - (1,280)
Credit to other comprehensive income 5t A B 2 E I3 (H&E11)
(note 11) (7,654) - - (7,654)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318 30,156 2,008 (137) 32,027

For the purpose of presentation in consolidated
statement of financial position. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purpose:

RAUAER2INGETBRRE - ER

T:

ISR EER  EEB AR D T W0

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHExT THE T

Deferred tax asset EEFREEE 272 311
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE (32,299) (41,272)
(32,027) (40,961)
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. &
2022 2021
20224 202145
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Authorised: EIE -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0008% = IR EH{E
HK$0.1 each 0.1/ 8T 2 EBR 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHBE:
320,000,000 ordinary shares of 320,000,000/ B R HE
HK$0.1 each 0.178 T2 EBER 32,000 32,000
26. RESERVES 26. fi# s
(a) Company (a) =2 F]
Share Contributed  Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
R EE BEaRH Rt BR At
(note (c)(i)) (note (c)(v)) (note (c)(vii)
(M=) GEL) (Bt EE(c)(vin)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1818 57,099 89,606 (83,354) 63,351
Changes in equity for 2021: 202112 BHEH :
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EE RN KR 2 HKHEAH
income for the year - - 4,043 4,043
Dividends paid (note b)) 2R E (HizEh() - - (6,400) (6,400)
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F128318 K
1 January 2022 2022F1R1H 57,099 89,606 (85,711) 60,994
Changes in equity for 2022: 20225 2 E#EH :
Profit and total comprehensive  FERFIR2AKBLERE
income for the year - - 10,822 10,822
Dividends paid (note b(i)) BRI E (HiEh() - - (6,400) (6,400)
At 31 December 2022 2022%12831H 57,099 89,606 (81,289) 65,416

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA
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(b) Dividends

e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H

31 December 2022
26. RESERVES - CONTINUED 26. s — 48
(b) BRE
(i) Dividends paid during the year: (i) REBAZHNZIKE :
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Final dividend of HK$0.01 FARLHBFERER
(2021: HK$0.01) per ordinary X{THIAREREESR
share, approved and paid EER0.01E T
during the year, in respect of (20214 : 0.01%8Jt)
the previous financial year 3,200 3,200
Interim dividend of HK$0.01 EERRIRTHEHARE
(2021: HK$0.01) per ordinary #RZER0.01B T
share, declared and paid (20214 : 0.01787T)
during the year 3,200 3,200
6,400 6,400

(i)

Dividend proposed in respect of the

current year:

Final dividend, proposed, of
HK$Nil (2021: HK$0.01)
per ordinary share

BRI REER

EBERETEBT

(20214 : 0.01%87T)

(i) REEZAZERZKE -

2022
20225
HK$'000
FHER

2021
20215
HK$'000
FET

3,200

The final dividend for the year proposed after
the end of the reporting period is subject to
shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming
general meeting. It has not been recognised
as a liability at the end of the reporting

period.
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

26. RESERVES - CONTINUED

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

Share premium

The share premium account represents the
excess of the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the net
proceeds from the issuance of ordinary
shares after deduction of the share issuing
expenses.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of
the ordinary shares issued by the Company
and the aggregate of the share capital and
share premium of subsidiaries acquired
through exchanges of shares pursuant to the
reorganisation.

Property revaluation reserve

Property revaluation reserve represents
cumulative net gains/losses arising on the
revaluation of ownership interests in leasehold
land and buildings held for own use.

Exchange reserve

The reserve represents the cumulative
net exchange difference arising from the
translation of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 4(p).

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
nominal value of the ordinary shares issued
by the Company and the net asset value of
subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of
shares pursuant to the reorganisation.

26. % i — 8
(c) RIEHEEREW

(1)

(11)

BRG&E

B EERERNQATETZ
ZBERAEEBHNEXARH
BRET2EBRKEFEE
(NMBRBITERAB) ZEZ8 -

=]
EREFEERA D TR2001
FEBXAETARAQFZE
RTEBEREERREEAR
MRXBRRDAESTZHBE R
AlZBRANERGBERS
ZRAMEZERE -

(iii) Y% E 1 1a 15

(iv)

(v)
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26. RESERVES — CONTINUED
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves — Continued

(vi) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling)
comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive
income that are held at the end of the
reporting period.

(vii) Retained earnings/accumulated losses

Cumulative net gains and losses recognised
in profit or loss.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), retained earnings and
contributed surplus are distributable to
owners of the Company, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of retained earnings and contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium.
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2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

26. & fis — 48
(c) REEHEEREN-—E&
(vi) B A (FEEER)
EEEE CGHER) BERS
HAR 5 LA FE S A H At
2EBEZBRATENHDF
BRI FEH -

(vii)) R B it 7~ Rt 5 12
B PR AT R 5 2 B
BRER -

BEBREIGIERQAE
(R1EFT) 2B E - REBER
RESEMBRUTRARAQFHE
EADR HEAFEETHK
o BARATEUTHER : ()
AR REREDREHFE
EEEIBPERS R ()AL
AEEZUZREBRED K
#BHEEIREALTAZEER
HEBTRARRMD EEZ
AN > Bl A Bk SO 3 iR
ERURBEFNREHNRE G
DI ©
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20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

27.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following
significant transactions with related parties:

(a)

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

Related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Datatronics Romoland, Inc. (“DRI") #
Sales to DRI
Reimbursement of expenses to DRI

EDRISEE 2 £ 58
MDRIZFZEA BT

27. REBEANETEZ S

EAFEER AEEAETHIEREA

TETZEARS :

(a) BAALHRAEI4AZEERT 26
BEXG Uit AGZEAZTHEWHR
ZEBEALTXZZNOT

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTATT
54,546 44,524
13,177 11,388

W Mr. Siu Paul Y., a director of the Company, has
controlling interest in DRI.

Related party balances included in the
consolidated statement of financial position:

Year-end balance included in trade
receivables arising from sales of
goods to DRI

Year-end balance arising from
advance to ultimate holding
company
— Onboard Technology (note 21)

AR 2 R AR

EE 2 FREH

(By=E21)
Year-end balance arising from
advance to related companies:
— Data Express Limited (note 21)

ZERGER

(BfgEE21)
— Citicheer Enterprise Inc (note 21) — Citicheer Enterprise Inc
(FfF&EE21)
Year-end balance arising from HDRIENBREEZ
advance from DRI FREEER

BDRIEEEMEEEW

BERAZER AT ENER

— Onboard Technology
MEAEARENBREE

— Data Express Limited

MREALE (ERFRR 22—
EENMBKEHTR) EHDRIZE

2022
20225
HK$'000
FHER

891

112

142

144

1,055

FAREHBRRRZBEAL
HER

2021
20215
HK$'000
FHET

529

112

129

128

423
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20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

27.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - 27. RBEANELR IR
CONTINUED
(c) Key management personnel remuneration of the (00 REBETEEEAS Z2HM
Group
2022 2021
2022 202145
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short-term employee benefits HHESREF 11,877 11,530
Post-employment benefits EREER 26 18
11,903 11,548
The key management personnel of the Group are AEBFEEBEASNAEEH
the executive directors of the Group. TE=-
28. LEASES 28.# 8§
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as HEZTFWHEE (LEBEASHD)
lessee)
The Group leases a number of properties in the AEEETHEHKREMENRAEEEEA
jurisdictions from which it operates. Leases of EfZYX -YMEHEESEHER
property comprise only fixed payments over the lease AHEESK °
term.
Lease liabilities HEEE
2022 2021
20224 202145
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Buildings BF
At 1 January M1 A1H 1,266 859
Additions & hn 246 -
Lease modification HEBHR 489 931
Interest expenses FME X H 39 36
Lease payments HEN (624) (560)
Foreign exchange movements 0E 5% B 2 —
At 31 December M12831H 1,418 1,266
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

28. LEASES — CONTINUED
Lease liabilities — Continued

Future lease payments are due as follows:

28.1HE 1B

HESE-&

AREBARREEMNRAOT :

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
BEESESK F 2 R{E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT
31 December 2022 2022512H31H
Not later than one year B F 616 (32) 584
Later than one year and TEFRETER2E
not later than two years 616 (16) 600
Later than two years and not  2F&{EREBRSE
later than five years 236 (2) 234
1,468 (50) 1,418
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEAEMNK 2 R{E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET FET
31 December 2021 2021%12831H
Not later than one year B F 601 (25) 576
Later than one year and TEFRETER2E
not later than two years 526 (10) 516
Later than two years and not  2F&{EBREBRSE
later than five years 175 (1) 174
1,302 (36) 1,266
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e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

28.LEASES - CONTINUED 28. HE ¥
Lease liabilities - Continued HEEE-—&
The present value of future lease payments are AREESFHKREIFOT :
analysed as:
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FERT
Current liabilities mEEE 584 576
Non-current liabilities FREBEE 834 690
At 31 December MW12A31H 1,418 1,266
2022 2021
20224 202145
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHERT FHET
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEBEZANE 39 36
Short-term leases expenses EHEES N 666 617
The Group as a lessor EEHE-HEA
The Group's investment property is leased to a tenant AEENREYMEREERETHA
under an operating lease. At the end of the year, the FTHERBA REEH  TOUHEZLE
Group had total future minimum lease receivables HEBETREBKHESWT :
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:
2022 2021
20224 20215
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FERT
Within one year 1R 2,160 2,160
In the second to the fifth year SE2FEESFE 586 2,746
2,746 4,906
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. BEKIE
2022 2021
2022 202145
HK$'000 HK$'000
S THET
Commitment for the acquisition of: EBEBETIEEN
BEARRE
— manufacturing plants -4 ERE 6,321 4,481
— properties — M2 68 59
— machinery and equipment —HBER B 529 193
6,918 4,733
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20224 12A31H
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31 December 2022
30. THE COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF 30 AFIZI BRI E
FINANCIAL POSITION
Notes 2022 2021
Bt & 20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FBT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries i ERNGI £ 113,606 113,606
113,606 113,606
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FBfTERFX &R
receivables H b FE Y 718 128 126
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERFRLEER 178 101
306 227
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A B B D B FIE 16,369 20,745
Other payables H th fE S FRIE 127 94
| 164% | 20,839
Net current liabilites =~ w®AfF®E = | (16,190)|  (20,612)
NET ASSETS EEFE 97,416 92,994
Equity =
Share capital i@ 25 32,000 32,000
Reserves e 26 65,416 60,994
TOTAL EQUITY R EE 97,416 92,994
On behalf of the Board of Directors REESW
Siu Ronald Shui Wai Mei
mhR HmEX
Director Director
EZE EZE
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M HRR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price
risk,. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments either for hedging or trading
purposes. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out as below.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk
As at 31 December 2022, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer
rather than the industries and countries in which
customers operate and therefore significant
concentration of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as approximately 24% (2021: 15%) and 59%
(2021: 50%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group's largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.

1. MERREER

AEEZFESRIAGHERERS
BHRLEE  BURREMEVRERR
BARAREMENRE ZEEH
TEAFBRIMEPRE -ZEER
TEEEzRARBEBREEERR R

MR FIRERE - E¥RERERAE
BREAR AEEXREREHRK
ZENEAERBITAEAEMIAE - W
AR EZERR 2 BRERS T X -

AEBEERREEFIHESH
WS Z AU EAMY > W REBERE
HREAKEMBRRER 2T
g -TEEEEREERZSAR B
REER BFR A RO BREVE B 2 1B 1 -

(i) EERR
2022128318 ' R RAEER
B AHE LUAR S B IS R R R & B B
EEZREBERT

JE W AR 50

MEVWERMS  AEEZEE
ERFESREFZTREBRLE
Z MIEEFMEEZTELE
SWENEKR BHit SERK
ZEFHFEREAEEELEF
FzFRERKB R&EER  BR
FEUR BR SR 48 58 224% (20214 -
15% ) ’59% (20214 : 50%) &
AAERAEEZ2REREFREA
REF WMAEEZEERKME
E&EF o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - BS1.MEREEERE -&

CONTINUED

(i) Credit risk - Continued (i) EERKR &

Trade receivables — Continued

In order to minimise risk, the management has
a credit policy in place and the exposure to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’
financial position and condition is performed
on all customers periodically. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current liability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The
Group does not require collateral in respect of its
financial assets. Debts are usually due within 90
days from the date of billing.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowances based on past due status is
not further distinguished among the Group’s
different customer bases.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 $R

FEW IR — &

REERERERZEWRRR B
EECAGERXEY MAH
REBEAEDREER -HEFY
kR R AR 2 5 EREAL T3 E
HEEFET ZSETEEDE
FBRAXNIMMREZLERE
A 2EBRED  ARBEFEE
BERREFEEMEEBEREZ
EX -AEERMBEEL AR
RUEBEF R -FREERHE
H#B90H MBI -

REENREFEHNNAREE
FERESHESERBERRNERR
B ZEEERBRBERTE -
HRASENELEFEERRER
WRBEBRTEAEFHNBRE
AFEREZR  RAHRED
FEBETSE-SPRAKEN
TEEFHED °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -

CONTINUED
(i) Credit risk - Continued

Trade receivables — Continued

The following table provides information about
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for trade receivables:

1. MERBEEE - &

() FERR-&
FEW IR — &
T RIBHAREA S EE R E W
RNBRREERBREABEERS
BRER:

Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
HHEEZR REE BiREE
(%) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F&x) (F#&x)

2022 2022
Current (not past due) BNER (RBHA) 0.15%-3.50% 18,888 245
1-30 days past due wHI1-308 0.64%-3.99% 6,446 176
31-60 days past due HHI31-60H 1.13%-4.48% 4,069 101
61-90 days past due HHI61-90H 3.10%-6.45% 1,751 81
More than 90 days past due ~ EHF90H ML k£ 5.07%-8.42% 3,446 228
34,600 831

Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHBER fREE BEEE
(%) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(FEx) (FBx)

2021 20215
Current (not past due) BNER (@ ER) 0.00%-5.23% 20,994 395
1-30 days past due HHA1-30R 0.51%-5.73% 3,758 57
31-60 days past due HHA31-60H 1.02%-6.24% 2,143 60
61-90 days past due HHA61-90H 3.05%-8.27% 3,017 119
More than 90 days past due ~ HIHF90H ML k£ 5.08%-10.30% 650 27
30,562 658

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of

the receivables.
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RHREEFERZRBRIFNER
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e M B HRRMEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED

(i

(ii)

Credit risk — Continued

Deposits, other receivables and amounts due
from related companies

The Group adopts general approach for ECLs of
deposits, other receivables and amounts due from
related companies. No deposits, other receivables
and amounts due from related companies as
at 31 December 2022 is classified which the
directors considered they are credit-impaired.
During the year ended 31 December 2022,
expected credit loss of HK$Nil was made
(2021: expected credit loss of HK$2,381,000
was reversed) on the credit-impaired other
receivables.

Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to credit risk by
placing deposits with the banks with established
credit rating. Given the high credit ratings of
the banks, management does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demand, subject to board
approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of its non-derivative financial liabilities,
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the
Group can be demanded for repayment. The
table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 $R

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

1. MBEREE - &

0]

(ii)

EERK-&

#z - BN R E K EEZE
D El L E

AEEHRS HMERERAR
FEUR B EE N R RIB R A — R B A
SEEMEEEE  R20225F12
B31B RERE HMEKEK
EREEARRBHEERARE
EiR{E - §E2022F128318 1k
FE CREMERRERARE
ZEINFEHEEERX (20215
ZEER AR #2,381,000/87T) °

RIT 17 7%
AEBBERFEREEFRN
EREBUAREEHENEER
o ERBRTESHEENR
EEEX AR AEY T ELE
BEER -

B 1 B
rEEPzENEELESEE
HEBZREEE BERER
BREBREREESR 2 E
ZEENENHEHZREER -
REECHRRAENERH R
REPRBUEEREREHERE
MR UEREEERFEN
CRERBRERHZHATES
BMEBREHRCMEBEEURMGH
FHRRPZABMEER -

TRAFMABIINEEREREEDN
FATECHEBEREZEERS
MEBRTENH - TROIBRBEASE
BRAWEREENRT BN
ERMEBERMRAETRERH -
ZREFANERKTETHERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - 31. MM EE - &
CONTINUED
(ii) Liquidity risk - Continued (i) REERE - &
2022
20224
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow  on demand 5 year
g )

REHM MER BB1F
REE® Rehe FEEXR BFR5F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH7 TR TR TR
Trade and other payables ENREMENTRE 18,105 18,105 18,105 -
Amount due to a related company FE{fEE D FFE 1,055 1,055 1,055 -
Lease liabilities HEERE 1,418 1,468 616 852
Retention payable EARES 3,608 3,608 - 3,608
24,186 24,236 19,776 4,460
2021
20215
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 5 year
Amonn

REFR MER BE1E
REEHE RERE FEBEXR BFESF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT FET FER

Trade and other payables R REMEMNFHE 39,874 39,874 39,874 =
Amount due to a related company  FE{{BEE A FFUE 423 423 423 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,266 1,302 601 701
Retention payable EARES 4,510 4,510 - 4,510
46,073 46,109 40,898 5211
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED

(iii)

(iv)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Cash
flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. As
the Group has no interest-bearing liabilities, the
Group’s expenses and financing cash flows are
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risks as the Group has cash at banks which
are interest-earning at variable rates. The
management monitors interest rate exposures
and considered that there is no significant impact
on cash flow interest rate risk.

Currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect
to the foreign exchange exposure. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of
operation to which they relate.

(a) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. The Group is
mainly exposed to the fluctuation of United
States dollars (“US$"), RMB, Euro and Pound
Sterling. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in HK$,
translated using the spot rate at the year-end
date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 $R

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

1. MBEREE - &

(i) A FERREREFNRER
NFEMNEREREESHIAZ
BERTSMNRECMKE R
o REREFNERERRIETH
TEZRRBEREETH AR
BMKEB zER - HRAKE
TEFERE  HAKEZHX
FRERTREDBINTHF
R2BE -

AEERERERSEERLSIER
HRFEMSIRBEERENRE
b EEEERINRIZERR
ARETRENREABRITEELME
AEREE -

(iv) B = b
R N5 [ 3T £ ) S R B 5T
SRR o AN 6 B 22 [ #H Y b
ERRFTEREUBBEELE
HIEEEMUIICEERENDY
tHE RS o

@) BEEEzZE
TRAFAEEREERE
HHOMRERAMNUEBEZE
BIEEBUINI 2 EERE
NeEBERBBEIEHKB -
AEBEXBEREHET A
R BTREHF K-
LFEERAZHHERER
‘ROEBRARIZENET
25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED

(iv) Currency risk - Continued

1. MBEREE - &

(ivIE¥EKR—&

(a) Exposure to currency risk - Continued (a) EM R E&— &
2022
2022
Pound
us$ RMB Sterling Euro
e AR R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TET
Cash and cash equivalents  HERZERBLER 55,633 15,295 1,024 1,912
Trade and other receivables ~ FEW R E BT IB 12,968 - - -
Trade and other payables R E [ FE (1,287) (191) - -
Overall exposure arising from REHERREERAR
recognised assets and LEEYE
liabilities 67,314 15,104 1,024 1,912
2021
20215
Pound
Us$ RMB Sterling Euro
Er AR® R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TaL TEL FBL TET
Cash and cash equivalents  BERZERBELER 80,717 34,704 1,157 2,151
Trade and other receivables  FEUR & E 4t FE UK 3018 8,809 61 - -
Trade and other payables B REtEMHIE (2,143) (161) - -
Overall exposure arising from REHCHREERER
recognised assets and LEBREYE
liabilities 87,383 34,604 1,157 2,151
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20229 12A31H
31 December 2022

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - BS1.MEREEERE -&

CONTINUED

(iv) Currency risk — Continued (ivy E¥EKR—E
(b) Sensitivity analysis (b) BRE 7T

The following table indicates the TRIIBARQ T 2B BER,
approximate change in the Group's profit/ (BB RREBEMNEAEE
loss for the year and retained earnings in EHRENEEEANSEN
response to reasonably possible changes in SMEEZRNARESILMELE
translating relevant foreign currency against BN EE - THEHEXT
HK$ to which the Group has significant A B & 4R 88 & A3 0 (2021
exposure at the end of the reporting FaA RREENIEM) o
period. A positive number below indicates

an increase in profit and retained earnings

(2021: an increase in profit and retained
earnings).
2022 2021
20226 2021
Increase/
(decrease) in
Increase/ loss for the
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ year and
(decrease) in profit for (decrease) decrease/
in foreign the year in foreign (increase)
exchange and retained exchange retained
rates earnings rates earnings
FEFR
FEMNME i/ (as)
MEEEHN  RREEF HNEEZ  REBEF
g,/ GA9) (D) /#m | Bm/(HD) ®HD /(M)
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
THER TR
Monetary net assets DARBEERN 3% 453 3% (1,038)
denominated in RMB BEE (3%) (453) (3%) 1,038

Other components of consolidated equity
would not be affected (2021: Nil) by the
changes in foreign exchange rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - BS1.MEREER &
CONTINUED
(iv) Currency risk - Continued (ivy E¥EKR-E

(b) Sensitivity analysis - Continued

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to each of the Group entities’ exposure to
currency risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in foreign exchange rates over the period
until the end of the next annual reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the HK$ and the
US$ would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on
each of the group entities’ profit/loss for the
year and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2021.

The foreign exchange rates movement
between Pound Sterling, Euro and HK$
has insignificant impact to the results and
financial positions of the Group.

(b) BFED W —HE

BRM DT REINEE R
CIRNEERARERCHE
SEETREEREARARE
BHFTTEESRMT ARSI R
ZEWRRE MAAHLE
H(LERAR) ST E -

Lz B HIEEREHESR
T-—EFEAFEHLHEN
HNEERSERREEH 2
sreptms  BREB T
HEXT2BHEEXRKTER
EnRHMEEHNERZE
AEFMIZETE LR
IIRD 2 ERAREASE
EETEERRSEDREE
B ELREERZERKR
EABITUMZ25 2 AAVER
BERGANEESEzZZER
B o 2D MII 20215 2 [
—E AT o

R R TE B T2 INEE
REPUAREE 2HERY
BIRABRTERTZE -

(v) Fair values (v) AFE

The directors consider that the carrying amount
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - BS1.MEREEERE -&

CONTINUED

(vi) Equity price risk (vi) BR A (B 1% & B

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from equity instruments designated as
FVOCI which are listed on the Stock Exchange
and National Association of Securities Dealers
Automated Quotations Stock Market (“NASDAQ").
Listed investments held in the portfolio have
been chosen based on their longer term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations. The portfolio
is diversified in terms of industry distribution, in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on equity price risk
includes the Group's financial instruments, which
fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate
because of changes in their corresponding or
underlying asset’s equity price. If the prices
of the respective equity instruments had been
20% higher/lower, loss for the year would
decrease/increase by nil (2021: nil) and other
component of equity would increase/decrease by
HK$3,349,000 (2021: HK$Nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 $R

REBFEAZERS IR METE
RETHEESEEMEEKE
ARNEREENESTARE
EHNRAERBBNER - NE
EIREE2$+ ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂAﬂPE’Jtmh
ERNSZRZRENRDE
b%ﬂ@iﬁ’ﬂt;&ﬁﬂﬁ*%&ﬁ%fﬁm
EREHEY REEEREHNR
B REAEETFOMAER
Zibd »

B E 5 HT
REEXRARNBREDTEE
TREEWNERIAE EAFEE
FARBESHREKEAHLEHK S
Bﬁ EENEZERSCTRE -

EEBMESTANBNRLEA
TH20% HEAFEFEEESY
2 (2021%F &)  EEWHEMA
I D A& E A, 803,349,000
T (20214 : B L) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022912 A31H
31 December 2022

32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group regards the equity attributable to the
Company’s owners, comprising share capital, share
premium, retained earnings and other reserves as
its capital structure. The Group’s objective when
managing capital structure is to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. Total debt is calculated as the total of trade and
other payables, amount due to a related company,
retention payable, lease liabilities and provision
of employee benefits. Capital represents equity
attributable to owners of the Company. No gearing
ratios are presented as the Group had no net debt as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

R.BFxEBER

FEERARAAEAARLEEZSH
EX (BREOBRITRA  ROEE R
BaMRHEMEE)  NEEBNERE
BRERRBEAREGEEERD
BUIRBRREHE HRE EMERBEA L
TR - BERRNHBRELRE
AEBEFIERABRINTRRORKRE
RE AT RREBEATHIR

SERAEEEBERERER  IF
BEBRUERBEMLEFEK - B
BRBBTEAENERREMMES
ME - ENBEEARARE  ENRE
¢ HEEBREIRGAEBE BX
BREAQNBEBEAELEZ - BRAK
EEMN2021FEK2022512A31 B &
FEXK AUt BXEERUAREER
5l o
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33. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The following table shows the carrying amount of

financial assets and liabilities as defined in notes 4(j)(i)
and 4(j)(iii):

e M B HRRMEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H

31 December 2022

BMERENMBARSI AEBE

T RIZBMIFEAG) ()B4l 2 E & 5 &
MBREENPHEREZREE :

Carrying amount

BREE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHExT
Financial assets MBEE
Equity instruments designated at fair value ZAF{EFTE2B 2 E A
through other comprehensive income Hih2HEKm2RATA 16,745 -
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEIFEEZEBA
profit or loss BERzemEE 7,904 =
Financial assets measured REERATECUBEE
at amortised cost
— Cash and cash equivalents - RERERREEER 136,772 208,215
— Trade receivables — FE W BR =X 33,769 29,904
— Deposits and other receivables - ReRHEHMERIE 3,984 868
— Amount due from ultimate - B EAERQBRIE
holding company 122 112
— Amounts due from related companies — FEUXEEE N B X 1E 286 257
199,582 239,356
Financial liabilities MEaE
Financial liabilities measured REHENATECHBEE
at amortised cost
— Trade and other payables — BRI H A FE S FRIE 18,105 39,874
— Amount due to a related company - EREEARRE 1,055 423
— Lease liabilities —HEERE 1,418 1,266
— Retention payable -ERREE 3,608 4,510
24,186 46,073
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20224 12A31H
31 December 2022

34. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

35.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EEREIZERER DA

OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows

. GERNERME

HREEHELENRETREAEED

arising from financing activities: B SR
Amount
due to a
related Lease Dividend
company liabilities payable Total
B EE
NGBS HEGE FEfFBR 2 WM
(note 28) (note 26(b))
(BEE28)  (B#EE26(b))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAERT TAET FTART FTAERT
At 1 January 2021 20211818 583 859 - 1,442
Changes from cash flow: Bz nsgl:
Dividends paid 2KRE - = (6,400) (6,400)
Repayment to a related BN
company BENT (160) - = (160)
Lease payments HENR - (560) = (560)
Non-cash changes: FHELENL .
Dividends declared EERKE = = 6,400 6,400
Lease modification HEBKR - 931 - 931
Interest expenses MEXH - 36 - 36
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F 128318 Kk
1 January 2022 20221818 423 1,266 - 1,689
Changes from cash flows: BEnEZL -
Dividends paid 2KRE - - (6,400) (6,400)
Advance from a related W R E A R B
company MIH 632 - - 632
Lease payments HEMRK - (376) - (376)
Non-cash changes: FHELENL .
Dividends declared EERKE - - 6,400 6,400
Lease modification HEBXR - 489 - 489
Interest expenses MEXH - 39 - 39
At 31 December 2022 #2022%F12831H 1,055 1,418 - 2,473
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3. MBHRERZHH

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

March 2023.

BB HREN2023FE3021BHEES

EHERRET -
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The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Group for the financial years
2018 to 2022 and the consolidated statements of financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, 2019,
2020, 2021 and 2022 are as follows:

B BIR
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AEBR2018E202FEH BEEZHE1E
mRkEMEERRRRAEER2018%F
20194 ~ 20204 ~ 20215 K% 2022512831
ARGl BRRERAOT :

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A3MBLEE
Results B4 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20185 20195 20205 20214 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000
FET THBT FET THBT FHBT
Revenue =E 3 312,644 284,225 230,806 243,601 | 262,424
Profit/(loss) before BF A RA S (EE)
taxation 52,600 23,353 (4,064) 6,872 28,177
Income tax riE% (4,631) (5,710) (2,844) (3,046) (302)
Profit/(loss) for the year AREERA, (EE) 47,969 17,643 (6,908) 3,826 27,875
Attributable to: FEARER 1D
Owners of the Company ZAAQATHEA A 47,969 17,643 (6,908) 3,826 27,875
At 31 December
M12H31H
Assets and liabilities EEREE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20185 20194 20204 20214 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000
FETT FBT FET TBT FHBT
Total assets BEHSAE 947,412 968,751 959,838 989,499 | 927,081
Total liabilities BEHE (86,630) (104,611) (94,249) (111,310)| (76,803)
Total equity R 860,782 864,140 865,589 878,189 | 850,278
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CRE e S
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Major land and buildings held by the Group AEEEEXTEITHRETF
Percentage

Location Existing usage Term of lease of interest

i B RSAR HEH R R

Hong Kong
i3

499 King's Road, North Point Office Long term 100%

BB AREEA995 WAZE RE

8 Russell Street, Causeway Bay Investment Long term 100%

property

=B 81 i 2 Z R8N REMH R H

Overseas

=50

A parcel of industrial land at Lun Jian Town, Shunde Industrial Medium term 100%
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, PRC

—EUAFREERE/LTIERERBEL T &R

A parcel of industrial land at Banfu Town, Zhongshan Industrial Medium term 100%
City, Guangdong Province, PRC

—RURPBEEREF LHRKELS I A

3 Storeys of industrial building at Baofa Group Industrial Medium term 100%
building, Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, PRC

SEURPEEREHFLUTIEERRE I AR
KREEXHLUNIXEKRE

A parcel of industrial land at Ba Thien Il Industrial Medium term 100%
Industrial Park, Binh Xuyen District,
Vinh Phuc Province, Vietnam

— BN BEEKEEF)IFEREITXE L i T HHA

4 apartments at Vinh Yen City, Residential Medium term 100%
Vinh Phuc Province, Vietnam

MR KEEKE YR F= A
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